
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                      

                                                                               
   

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, September 20, 2011 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
              
 9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

� September 13, 2011 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
Central Services 
a. Authorization to Proceed With Transitional Upgrade of the County Telephony Systems 
b. Authorization to Purchase Annual Maintenance for Fujitsu Scanners 
Clerk 
c.   Authorization to Purchase File Folders 
Commissioners 
d. Payment Authorization for Wireless Canopy Installation @ Fairgrounds    
Fairgrounds 
e. Lease Agreement w/Gary Kendall for Annual Angus Auction 
Human Services 
f. Transfer of Real Property to Greater Columbia Behavioral Health     
g. Grant Agreement w/Domestic Violence Services 
h. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 504 
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 504 
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 560 
Juvenile 
k. Contract Amendment w/DSHS Through Juvenile Accountability Block Grant    
l. Agreement w/DSHS for Evidence Based Expansion 
Office of Public Defense 
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136   
n. Terminating District Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/C Harkins 
o. District Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/C Harkins  
p. Compensation Authorization for J Celski for Indigent Defense Services 
Parks 
q.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000 
Planning 
r.    Short Plat Vacation – SPV 11-02  
Public Works 
s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500 

Leo Bowman 
District 1 
Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted area



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 
commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
September 20, 2011 
Page Two 
 
 

t. Amending Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/Kennewick Irrigation District 
u. Amending Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District  
Sheriff 
v. Purchase Authorization for Camera from EyeOn Manufacturing, LLC 
w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 
x. Salary Request Statement 

 
9:05 AM Scheduled Business:     
 

Benton City Economic Development Council – A Fyall / B Baker 
 
  Boundary Review Board BRB 11-05 – C Posey 
 
  Capital Improvement Plan Review – K Mercer / L Small 
 
  Unscheduled Visitors  

   Board Assignment Update 

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, September 13, 2011, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
Present: Chairman Leo Bowman 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small  
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; 
County Engineer Malcolm Bowie; DPA Ryan Brown; DPA Ryan Lukson; Sheriff Steve Keane; 
Sgt. Jon Law; Jacki Lahtinen, District Court; Central Services Manager Randy Reid; R.J. Lott, 
Planning; Nick Kooiker, Treasurer’s Office.  
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of August 30, 2011 were approved. The Special Minutes of August 30, 2001 were 
approved.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “aa”.  
Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Clerk 

a. Copier Lease w/Pacific Office Automation  
Commissioners 

b. Letter to BF Fair Association Re 2011 Fair & Rodeo  
c. Letter to Elected Officials & Managers Re 2011 Fair 
d. Appreciation Letters Regarding Badger Mountain Centennial Preserve  
e. Letter to City of Richland Re Recreational Use Agreements w/the Barker Ranch 
f. Time of Remembrance Proclamation 
g. Line Item Transfer Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107 
h. Line Item Transfer Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
i. House Bill 2124 and Senate Bill 5964 Support 

Facilities 
j. Contract Amendment w/Dynamic Sales & Services, Inc.  



 - 2 - 

Fairgrounds 
k. Vehicle Purchase Authorization From Columbia Ford Mercury Hyundai  

Human Services 
l. Surplus of Personal Property 
m. Lease Addendum w/Bassett/Sonju J/V 
n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 551 

Juvenile 
o. Truancy Contract w/Pasco School District    
p. Truancy Contract w/Kennewick School District  
q. Authorization for Grant Expenditures 

Personnel 
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000 
s. Personal Services Contract w/Penser NorthAmerica, Inc.  

Public Works 
t. Public Hearing Authorization for Vacation of Unimproved Right of Way   
u. Authorization to Proceed w/Apply-A-Line, Inc. Contract  

Sheriff 
v. Contract w/Custom Welding & Ornamental Iron, LLC for Installation of Bunk Ladders  
w. Purchase Authorization for Miscellaneous Items from Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply, 

Inc. 
x. Purchase Authorization for Food Service Gloves & Cups from Columbia Basin Paper & 

Supply 
y. Purchase Authorization for Paper Towels from Airgas Safety, Inc.   
z. Salary Request Statement     

Treasurer 
aa. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0129-101, Dept. 000 

 
Time of Remembrance  
 
Chairman Bowman said he would not be at the ceremony and asked one of the Commissioners to 
be there in his place to read the proclamation.  Commissioner Small said that one of them would 
be there.   
 
Public Hearing – Surplus Property 
 
Keith Mercer said the public hearing was to allow the surplus of parcel 1-2680-400-0009-001 
and authorize the sale by private negotiation.  He also said there was a proposed land exchange 
with the Port of Kennewick.   
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the surplus of parcel 1-2680-400-0009-001    
and enter into private negotiations for sale of the property.  Commissioner Small seconded.   
 
 



 - 3 - 

Discussion 
 
Commissioner Beaver said the property was landlocked and trading with a different parcel would 
be beneficial.   
 
Upon vote, the motion carried.   
 
Public Hearing – Ordinance – Public Urination 
 
Andy Miller via/video conference stated this proposed ordinance came from the Law & Justice 
meeting in looking at ways to reduce costs.  He said the indecent exposure statute was designed 
to keep individuals from purposely exposing themselves and that public urination did not seem to 
meet the same criteria.  They felt a civil infraction was more appropriate and could issue a 
citation if deemed appropriate by the officer instead of it being a criminal charge.   
 
DPA Ryan Lukson said there would be up to $100 fine with the exception being for children, a 
medical reason, or no reasonable alternative.  
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the adoption of the ordinance relating to 
public urination.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   
 
Application for Private Road Name Change 
 
R.J. Lott reviewed the application by James Parker to rename Ferry PR NW, a private access 
easement located off of Hansen Road.  Notices were sent to all affected agencies and as of this 
date, those agencies that have responded either had no comments or were in favor of the road 
name change. A majority of the owners in the lots within the short plats affected by the access 
easement have signed the petition. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve name change as presented with conditions 
from Ferry PR NW to Island View PR NW.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the 
motion carried.   
 
Gang Abatement Update 
 
Sheriff Keane and Sgt. Jon Law updated the Board on the Gang Abatement program.   
 
Sheriff Keane said the past 90 days included: putting the gang team together; purchasing 
vehicles; background checks, training, and certifications; and Sgt. Jon Law working on long and 
short-term goals.   
 
Sgt. Law briefly discussed the following:  

 Goals 
o Suppression, Intelligence, Public Education 



 - 4 - 

o Prosecution strategies; working with partners 
 Trends – 148 new gang members taken in jail in first 6 months – previously 

unidentified;  
 Drive-by in E. Kennewick  – known gang member’s house was shot at; 
 Once everyone is trained they will be operational (by next week will have three 

individuals ready to go).  
 
The Sheriff stated very little money had been spent so far but as the team members were plugged 
into the program they would start to see impacts to the budget.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:40 a.m.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Benton County Emergency Services 
 
Commissioner Small requested Ryan Brown and Tony Corsi come talk with the Board about the 
BCES issues.  Commissioner Small said that Benton County still wanted its money returned and 
was looking for a response from its letter sent in April.  Mr. Corsi said he didn’t have a copy of 
that letter so the Board said they would get him a copy.   
 
Chairman Bowman said the interlocal agreement seemed to be going back and forth without 
success and he requested Mr. Sparks and Mr. Brown put together a team to work out the issues 
of the interlocal agreement. 
 
Mr. Corsi said one of the hold ups was that he personally refused to sign for the system because 
he did not believe it was working properly and they were working on getting the last steps 
complete.  He said once that happened that everyone would get their money back and they were 
not trying to cheat anyone.   
 
The Board discussed the time period and Commissioner Beaver asked what the interlocal 
agreement had to do with the keeping the money.  Mr. Corsi said that installation was not 
complete; they had not accepted the work nor made final payment.  Mr. Brown said the contract 
language did not have to do with acceptance and the County paid for the system even though 
there were some glitches that need to be worked out.  If there were improvements outside the 
contract language, they should not be using the money to pay for improvements that were not 
agreed on.  Mr. Brown said he did not think the jurisdictions would oppose setting aside the 
money to pay Motorolla and return the remaining money to the jurisdictions.   
 
Mr. Corsi said the executive board would meet next week and he would make that 
recommendation.   
 
Mr. Brown said he needed some additional things for the interlocal: 

1. Ownership of microwaves; was the Board agreeable to all being owned by Kennewick,  
Richland, and Benton?  The Board agreed.   

2. Voting rights on how many microwaves - (he wanted a list). 



 - 5 - 

3. Revising the 800 mhz – should the unexpended money be refunded? The Board agreed it 
would have an answer by the next board meeting. 

4. Amendments to agreements (voting parties).  Was the Board agreeable to 8 votes to 
amend the new agreement? The Board said the Committee could agree on that.   

 
Fair Association  
 
Chairman Bowman said they also received a thank you letter from the Fair Association regarding 
the 2011 Fair.   
 
Governor’s Task Force  
 
Chairman Bowman reported on his attendance at the Task Force meeting and said they would be 
receiving a report on taxes put into transportation by tribes. 
 
Bi-County Meeting 
 
Franklin County had requested a bi-county meeting to discuss the e-gov findings and to review a 
possible offer on the health building on Canal.   
 
FMSB Board  
 
Received word there would be approval to fund Piert Road. 
 
9/11 Ceremony – City of Kennewick 
 
Commissioner Beaver requested the Board send thank you letters to Lampson and City of 
Kennewick regarding the 9/11 Ceremony held in the Southridge Complex.   
 
Claim for Damages 
 
CC 2011-24a: Received on September 12, 2011 from Karina Rodriguez 
CC 2011-24b: Received on September 12, 2011 from Noe Guzman Bautista 
CC 2011-24c: Received on September 12, 2011 from Julia Guzman 
CC 2011-24d: Received on September 12, 2011 from Ivan Alcazar Rodriguez 
CC 2011-24e: Received on September 12, 2011 from Laura Guzman 
CC 2011-24f: Received on September 12, 2011 from Javier Ramirez 
CC 2011-24g: Received on September 12, 2011 from Brenda Ramirez 
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 08/26/2011 
Warrant #: 40335-40657 
Taxes #: 10108112 
Total all funds: $702,516.96 
 



 - 6 - 

Check Date:  09/02/2011 
Warrant #: 40920-40944 
Taxes #: 10111091-10111093 
Total all funds: $1,857,022.61 
 
Check Date: 09/02/2011 
Warrant #: 40687-40790 
Warrant #: 40799-40919 
Total all funds: $1,369,685.73 
 
Check Date: 09/09/2011 
Warrant #: 41032-41200 
Total all funds: $623,183.64 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
11-563: Copier Lease w/Pacific Office Automation  
11-564: Time of Remembrance Proclamation 
11-565: Line Item Transfer Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107 
11-566: Line Item Transfer Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
11-567: House Bill 2124 and Senate Bill 5964 Support 
11-568: Contract Amendment w/Dynamic Sales & Services, Inc.  
11-569: Vehicle Purchase Authorization From Columbia Ford Mercury Hyundai  
11-570: Surplus of Personal Property 
11-571: Lease Addendum w/Bassett/Sonju J/V 
11-572: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 551 
11-573: Truancy Contract w/Pasco School District    
11-574: Truancy Contract w/Kennewick School District  
11-575: Authorization for Grant Expenditures 
11-576: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000 
11-577: Personal Services Contract w/Penser NorthAmerica, Inc.  
11-578: Public Hearing Authorization for Vacation of Unimproved Right of Way   
11-579: Authorization to Proceed w/Apply-A-Line, Inc. Contract  
11-580: Contract w/Custom Welding & Ornamental Iron, LLC for Installation of Bunk  

Ladders  
11-581: Purchase Authorization for Miscellaneous Items from Crown Paper & Janitorial 

Supply, Inc. 
11-582: Purchase Authorization for Food Service Gloves & Cups from Columbia Basin 

Paper & Supply 
11-583: Purchase Authorization for Paper Towels from Airgas Safety, Inc.   
11-584: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0129-101, Dept. 000 
11-585: Declaring Property as Surplus and Authorizing Sale  
11-586: Adoption of Ordinance 517 – Relating to Public Urination 
11-587: Naming of Private Road, Applicant, James Parker; File PR 11-01 



 - 7 - 

 
 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:30 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



CurrentUser
Text Box
a. Authorization to Proceed With Transitional Upgrade of the County Telephony Systems





CurrentUser
Text Box
b. Authorization to Purchase Annual Maintenance for Fujitsu Scanners







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 9-20-11        
Subject: Authorization to 

purchase case 
file folders 

Prepared by:       J. Delvin 
Reviewed by: ___________      

              

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution      X           
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda              X 

       
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Benton County Clerk would like to purchase case file folders. Since the total cost is over $5,000, we 
obtained 3 bids from vendors on the list.   
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Benton County Clerk would like to purchase case file folders. Since the total cost is over $5,000, we 
obtained 3 bids from vendors on the list. 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Board sign the resolution authorizing purchase of the case file folders. 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$0 
 
This is a cost that is in our budget and falls under office supplies.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Motion to approve the resolution for purchase of case file folders. 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
c. Authorization to Purchase File Folders



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF CASE FILE FOLDERS FOR 
THE BENTON COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE, 
 
WHEREAS, PER RESOLUTION 11-402, “If any County department other than Public Works 
desires to purchase or lease from a vendor on Benton County’s vendor list and not advertise and 
solicit formal sealed bids, it shall secure written quotes from at lease three (3) different vendors 
on the vendor list, unless the product is such that it is not reasonable to obtain three (3) price 
quotes”, and, 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Clerk’s Office solicited the following companies to provide a 
quote for case file folders;  
 
Office Max/IMPRESS  $5,385.36 (price includes shipping and tax) 
ReedMacS                $5,829.79 (price includes shipping and tax) 
ASI Business Group -  $5,791.00 (price includes shipping and tax) 
 
WHEREAS, Office Max/IMPRESS has the lowest price for case file folders; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, 
  
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington, hereby authorizes the purchase of case file folders from Office Max/IMPRESS, 
Spokane, WA in the amount of $5,385.36 including W.S.S.T. with the total amount payable not 
to exceed $5,790.00 including W.S.S.T. 
 
Dated this ______________day of _____________________, 2011 
 
 

           ______________________________ 
                   Chairman of the Board 
 
            ______________________________ 
                      Member 
 
            ______________________________ 
                                     Member 
 
       Constituting the Board of County 
       Commissioners of Benton County, 
       Washington. 
 
 
Attest:____________________________ 
           Clerk of the Board 
 
cc: J. Delvin, Clerk; File; R. Ozuna   



CurrentUser
Text Box
d. Payment Authorization for Wireless Canopy Installation @ Fairgrounds





CurrentUser
Text Box
e. Lease Agreement w/Gary Kendall for Annual Angus Auction









CurrentUser
Text Box
f. Transfer of Real Property to Greater Columbia Behavioral Health







CurrentUser
Text Box
g. Grant Agreement w/Domestic Violence Services



 
 
cc:  Human Services; Benton County Commissioners                                                                   M.  Loera 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

Benton County Resolution No.  _______________ 
  
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON; 

 
RE: IN THE MATTER OF EXECUTION OF GRANT AGREEMENT #2060/2163-2011-

DVSBF TO FUND DOMESTIC VIOLENCE SERVICES OF BENTON AND FRANKLIN 
COUNTIES FOR THE RENOVATION, REHABILITATION, AND CONTRACT 
REPAIRS OF THE DOMESTIC VIOLENCE SHELTER  

 
WHEREAS, Domestic Violence Services of Benton and Franklin Counties serves domestic 
violence victims and their families; and  
 
WHEREAS, the grant awarded pursuant to the grant agreement will provide funding for the 
rehabilitation, renovation, contract repairs for the Domestic Violence Shelter as well as first 
month rental vouchers for twenty (20) households exiting the shelter;  and 
 
WHEREAS, this grant agreement date reflects the date the Commissioners approved the 
project on April 18, 2011 and the applicants were advised of their successful application; 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby accept the 
proposed Agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners be, and hereby is, authorized to sign, on behalf of the respective county, 
Grant Agreement #2060/2163-2011-DVSBF with Domestic Violence Services of Benton and 
Franklin Counties for the renovation, rehabilitation, and contract repairs of the Domestic 
Violence Shelter and first month rental vouchers for twenty (20) households exiting the 
shelter for a total agreement amount of $88,917.21; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached agreement commences on April 18, 
2011 and expires on April 17, 2012. 
Dated this . .  . .day of . . . . . . . . . . , 2011   Dated this . .  . .day of . . . . . . . . . . , 2011 
 
 
_________________________________                             _________________________________ 
Chair                                                                                       Chair 
 
_________________________________                             _________________________________ 
Member                                                                                  Member 
 
_________________________________                             _________________________________ 
Member                                                                                  Member 
Constituting the Board of County Commissioners                               Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington                                 of Benton County, Washington 
 
 
Attest: ________________________________                           Attest: ________________________________ 
  Clerk of the Board              Clerk of the Board 





CurrentUser
Text Box
h. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 504









CurrentUser
Text Box
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 504







CurrentUser
Text Box
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 560







CurrentUser
Text Box
k. Contract Amendment w/DSHS Through Juvenile Accountability Block Grant









CurrentUser
Text Box
l. Agreement w/DSHS for Evidence Based Expansion









CurrentUser
Text Box
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136





CurrentUser
Text Box
n. Terminating District Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/C Harkins







CurrentUser
Text Box
o. District Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/C Harkins









CurrentUser
Text Box
p. Compensation Authorization for J Celski for Indigent Defense Services





CurrentUser
Text Box
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000





AGENDA ITEM:    
MTG. DATE:  September 20, 2011 
SUBJECT: Short Plat Vacation - SPV 
11-02 Zachery Carpenter 
Memo Date:  September 1, 2011 
Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson 
Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 

Execute Contract    
Pass Resolution    X 
Pass Ordinance      
Pass Motion          
Other                   

Consent Agenda     X 
Public Hearing   
1st Discussion     
2nd Discussion    
Other                 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On April 18, 2011, the Board of County Commissioners conducted a public hearing on 
SPV 11-02 regarding the vacation of the 60-foot access easement located within Lots 1 
and 2 to provide access to lots 3 and 4 of Short Plat 753 and also the vacation of a note 
on the short plat regarding the access easement placement.  At the conclusion of the 
public hearing the Board made a motion to approve the vacation conditioned on the 
applicant recording a new 60-foot access easement.  The Planning Department has 
been provided with copies of the recorded easement and the resolution for signature by 
the Board has been prepared. 
 
SUMMARY 
The resolution approving the Short Plat Vacation has been prepared for signature per 
the motion of the Board at the public hearing. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is the recommendation of Staff that the Board sign the resolution approving the Short 
Plat Vacation File No. SPV 11-02. 
 
MOTION 
No motion is needed at this time, just the Board’s signature on the resolution. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

CurrentUser
Text Box
r. Short Plat Vacation – SPV 11-02



RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING REGARDING THE PROPOSED VACATION OF THE 60-
FOOT ACCESS EASEMENT WITHIN LOTS 1 AND 2 OF SHORT PLAT 753 ALONG WITH THE NOTE 
ON THE FACE OF SAID SHORT PLAT REGARDING ACCESS PLACEMENT LOCATED.  APPLICANT: 
ZACHERY CARPENTER- PARCEL NUMBERS:  1-2097-201-0753-005 AND 1-2097-201-0753-006 
FILE NO. SPV 11-02 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners did conduct a public hearing on Monday, April 
18, 2011, at 10:00 a.m. in the Commissioners Meeting Room, Third Floor of the Courthouse, 
Prosser, Washington; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the signature of the property owners of said application includes all properties 
affected by this easement; and,  
 
WHEREAS, upon due notice as provided in RCW 58.17.080 and 58.17.090, the hearing before 
the Board of County Commissioners was held on such petition as indicated above; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners agreed with the summary report from the 
Benton County Planning Department, retained in File No. SPV 11-02; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it further appears that the vacation of the above mentioned easement would not 
unduly jeopardize the health, safety, welfare and public good; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the 60-foot access easement located within the Lots 1 and 2 to provide 
access to Lots 3 and 4 of Short Plat 753 located in the Northwest Quarter of Section 20, 
Township 9 North, Range 27 East, W.M, along with the note on the face of said short plat 
regarding the access easement placement are hereby vacated. 
 
 

Dated this  __________day of ______________________________. 
 
 
 
 _______________________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
 
 
 _______________________________________ 
 Member 
 
 
 _______________________________________ 
 Member 
 Constituting the Board of County 
 Commissioners of Benton County Washington 
 
 
Attest....................................................... 

Clerk of the Board RJL/djh 
 



CurrentUser
Text Box
s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500





CurrentUser
Text Box
t. Amending Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/Kennewick Irrigation District





CurrentUser
Text Box
u. Amending Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District





CurrentUser
Text Box
v. Purchase Authorization for Camera from EyeOn Manufacturing, LLC





CurrentUser
Text Box
w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121







CurrentUser
Text Box
Boundary Review Board BRB 11-05 – C Posey



  

 Benton County, 
                     Washington 

 
Capital Improvement Plan  

              2011-2016 

CurrentUser
Text Box
DRAFT

CurrentUser
Text Box
Capital Improvement Plan Review – K Mercer / L Small



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Capital Improvement Plan Navigation Tips  

 
 

 
Proceed to  TOC 

1

 

B 
 

C 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN NAVIGATION TIPS 

 
 
There are a number of ways to navigate through the Capital Improvement Plan.  Listed below are the three easiest options: 
 

1.  The Table of Contents contains links to all sections of the book.  To go directly to the section you would like to see, simply 
click on the section name or page number directly in either of the table of contents.  

 
If at any time you would like to return to the table of contents, click on Return to TOC located at the bottom of each page and 
it will take you back to the CIP table of contents.  
 

2.  Click on Bookmarks tab to the left of the window to view all of the bookmarked pages; the format is similar to the table of 
contents.  To expand a subsection, click the “+”.  To go to a section you would like to see, simply click on the section name.  

 
3.  At the bottom of the window the “◄” and “►” buttons take you back and forward one page at a time.  The “▐◄” and “►▌” 

take you to the first and last page of the document, respectively.  
 
 
 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011-2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

Table of Contents  
 
 

 2

 

B 
 

C 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
     Page 

Capital Improvement Plan Table of Contents.……………………………………………………………………………………. 2  

Adoption Resolution of the 2011-2016 Capital Improvement Plan……………………………………………………….…….. 3 

Board of Benton County Commissioners…………………………………………………………………………………….…….. 4 

County Departments……………….…………………………………………………………………………………………………         5-8 

Introduction……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………         9-13       

Impact of the CIP on the Operating Budget………………………………………….…………………………………………….         14 

Summary by Funding Type …………………………………………………………………………………………………………         15  

Summary of All Capital Projects by Funding Type……………………………………………………………………………….         16-17 

Capital Project Fund………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….         18-31 

Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund (E.R.&R. Fund)……………………………….…………………………………….…….          32 

Fairgrounds Improvement Fund……………………………………………………………………………………………………         33 

Jail Depreciation Reserve Fund……………………………………………………………………………………………………..          34-42 

Park Development Fund…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….          43-49 

1/4 Percent Real Estate Excise Tax Fund (R.E.E.T Fund)…………………………………………………………………………          50-53 

Real Estate Excise Tax Technology Fund (R.E.E.T. Technology Fund)…………………………………………………………          54 

Unfunded Source……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…….          55-59 

Glossary……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….          60-65 



 
Return to TOC 

3

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

 
 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING THE 2011 - 2016 BENTON COUNTY CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners desires to update the Benton County 
Capital Improvement Plan in conjunction with the biennial Benton County Budget; and  
 
WHEREAS, in past years, this document has been titled the Capital Facility Plan and this year 
the title was changed to Capital Improvement Plan, as additional departments were incorporated 
into the plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Improvement Plan is a planning document to be used in setting policy 
and establishing priorities for capital projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, the 2011-2016 Capital Improvement Plan shall be adopted as part of the County’s 
budget process and will be amended into the Capital Facilities Element of the Benton County 
Comprehensive Plan as allowed under RCW 36.70A.130(2)(a)iii; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby adopts the 
attached 2011-2016 Benton County Capital Improvement Plan.  



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Board of Benton County Commissioners   

 
 

 
Return to TOC 

4

 

B 
 

C 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

District 1 Benton County Commissioner Leo M. Bowman was elected  to  start his  first  term on  January 1, 1997.   
Commissioner  Bowman  graduated  from  Lewiston,  Idaho  and  studied  auto  repair  at  Spokane  Community  College, 
Spokane, WA.   In  1974,  he  opened  his  own  business,  Leo’s  Lineup,  in  Richland  and  kept  it  open  until  2005.   For 
additional information regarding Commissioner Bowman please click on his name above.   

 

 
 

District  2 Benton County Commissioner Shon R. Small was  elected  to  start  his  first  term  on  January  1,  2011. 
Commissioner Small attended Walla Walla Community College and majored  in Criminal  Justice, preparing him  for a 
future career as a Police Officer. He served Benton County for 22 years during his career in Law Enforcement with 20 of 
those years working  for  the Benton County Sheriffʹs Office.   For additional  information regarding Commissioner Small 
please click on his name above. 

 
 

 
 

 
District 3 Benton County Commissioner  James R. Beaver was elected  to  start his  first  term on  January 1, 2009.  
Commissioner Beaver earned his degree in Economics from Washington State University.  He  joins the County bringing 
18 years of government experience with him.  In 1990, he was elected to the Kennewick City Council and was appointed 
by  the Council  to serve as Mayor  from 1996  to 2008 making him  the  longest consecutive mayor  in over 100 years.  For 
additional information regarding Commissioner Beaver please click on his name above.  

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=1419&catID=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=1382&catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pview.aspx?id=1418&catID=45


BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Benton County Departments  

 
 

5 
Return to TOC  

 

 

B 
 

C BENTON COUNTY DEPARTMENTS  
 

The departments  listed below pertain  to  the projects  that are  listed  in  the Capital  Improvement Plan and does not  include all 
Benton County departments.  Each department listed below was involved in preparing their section of this document.  Click on the 
department name for additional information regarding the services they provide.  
 
 
Benton County Central Services Department 
Central Services  is an  internal services department  that provides  information  technology and  telecommunications support  for 
Benton County departments.  Central Services also processes outgoing mail for departments in Prosser. 
 
Mission 
The mission for Benton County Central Services is to improve the stability, functionality and performance of the Benton County information 
technology environment and support all departments in using information technology to meet their goals and objectives.  
 
 
 
Benton County Commissioners Office 
The County Commissioners adopt ordinances, resolutions, motions, levy taxes, appropriate revenue, and adopt the final budget 
for  the  County.  The  legislative  body  generally  confirms  appointments  to  County  boards  and  commissions.  The  County 
Commissioners generally appoint  the members of  the boundary review board and planning commission  in counties  that have 
created this board and commission. The County Commissioners can also sit as the board of equalization (the County board of 
property tax appeals) to review disputed assessments. 
 
Mission  
The Commissioners’ department is accessible to its constituents, with responsible elected officials who offer a broad, balanced prospective and 
services to the community. 
 
 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=1361&catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=704&catid=45


BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Benton County Departments  

 
 

6 
Return to TOC  

 

 

B 
 

C  
 
 

 
Benton County Corrections Department 
The Benton County  Sheriffʹs Office Bureau  of Corrections provides  incarceration  and  alternative program  services  to  all  law 
enforcement jurisdictions within Benton County. In addition, the jail provides contract services to other agencies throughout the 
State. The Benton County jail provides local user agencies several alternative programs to meet community needs; an electronic 
home monitoring program  (EHM), work release program and work crew program. The operation of  the alternative programs 
save user agencies several hundreds of thousands of dollars each year, based on the cost of full incarceration. 
 
Mission  
The mission  of  the Benton County Sheriffʹs Office  is  to  consistently  earn  the publicʹs  trust  and  contribute  to  safety  and  security  in  our 
community by providing the highest quality law enforcement, corrections and support services possible within the resources entrusted to us. 
We achieve our mission through  investing  in available resources  in highly‐motivated, professionally trained, ethical team members who are 
committed to working in partnership with the community, steadily improving interagency cooperation, and exhibiting the highest degree of 
personal and professional integrity. 
 
 
 
Benton County District Court 
Benton County’s five full time judges process Sheriff, State Patrol, Cities of Benton City, Kennewick, Prosser, Richland, and West 
Richland misdemeanors and infractions as well as small claims and civil suits involving amounts under $50,000. District Court 
also handles traffic citations, name changes and protection orders.  
 
Mission  
To provide fair and equal access to our Court for all members of the public.  To resolve civil and criminal cases while maintaining the respect 
and dignity of the individuals.  
 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=709&catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=705&catid=45


BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Benton County Departments  

 
 

7 
Return to TOC  

 

 

B 
 

C  
 

Benton County Facilities Department 
The Facilities Department is responsible for the physical environment of all Benton County Facilities.  The facilities include a 700‐
bed jail in Kennewick, the Courthouse at the County Seat in Prosser, the Kennewick Justice Center, the Health District Building in 
Kennewick,  the Kennewick Annex on Canal Blvd., Benton County Animal Control Facility, and other smaller satellite offices.  
This department also acts as the construction contracting office for Benton County administrative services.     
 
Mission  
It  is  the mission  of  the Benton County Facilities Department  to provide  a  safe,  secure, productive,  and  comfortable work  area  for Benton 
County employees and the users of Benton County Facilities. 
 
 
 
Benton County Fairgrounds 
The Benton County Fairgrounds is a multipurpose, county owned facility which is perfect for meetings, trade shows, livestock 
events,  RV  rallies,  concerts,  sporting  events,  day  camps  and  weddings.  The  location  and  layout  of  the  Benton  County 
Fairgrounds offers an affordable choice for almost any type of event. It is handicap accessible, fully fenced and can be accessed by 
three major street entrances with parking for over 2000 vehicles. The employees are well trained and help guide event holders 
through all phases of an event. 
 
Mission  
The  mission  of  the  Benton  County  Fairgrounds  is  to  make  it  our  challenge  to  meet  your  every  event  need;  priding  ourselves  on 
uncompromising services.  
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=1359&catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=708&catid=45


BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Benton County Departments  

 
 

8 
Return to TOC  

 

 

B 
 

C  
 

Benton County Parks Department  
Benton County  supports a  small parks  system  to provide  recreational and educational venues  for  the health, enjoyment, and 
enrichment  of  the  community. The Park Department works  for  the County Commissioners  at  the  advisement  of  the Benton 
County Park Board, and oversees eight separate park properties within the County. Benton County maintains park facilities only, 
and conducts no recreational programming. 
 
Mission  
To provide safe and meaningful educational and recreational experiences for both our residents and visiting public that showcases the natural 
resources and landscapes of Benton County. 
 
 
 
Benton County Public Works Department  
Benton County, Washington has a  total area of 1,760 square miles.  The Hanford Site, under Federal control encompasses 586 
square miles.   Fifty‐seven  square miles  of  the  County  is  covered with water.   Benton  County  Public Works  is  staffed with 
engineers, survey, construction and solid waste specialists, road maintenance crews and professional support staff responsible 
for the planning, engineering, design, construction, operation and maintenance of approximately 850 miles of County roads (600 
miles paved and 250 miles gravel) and 80 bridges within the 1,174 square land miles not under Federal control. 
  
Mission 
Provide solution‐oriented, cost effective, quality public works services and a safe, efficient county road system in accordance with applicable 
laws, resolutions, and regulations. 
 
 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=707&catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=713&catid=45


. 

 

Introduction 

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

INTRODUCTION to  this  Capital  Improvement  Plan  (CIP),  which  is  a
multiyear  plan, will  provide  information  on  the  plan  and a programmed 
approach to utilizing the County’s financial resources in the most efficient
manner to meet its service and facility needs.  

IINNTTRROODDUUCCTTIIOONN  



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction  

 
 

 
Return to TOC 

9 

 

B 
 

C 
INTRODUCTION 

 
 
What are Capital Improvements?    
 
The Capital Improvement Plan  (CIP)  is a six‐year roadmap  for creating, maintaining and paying  for Benton County’s present and 
future  infrastructure needs.   The CIP outlines project costs,  funding sources and estimated  future operating costs associated with 
each capital improvement.  The plan is designed to ensure that capital improvements will be made when and where they are needed, 
and that the County will have the funds to pay for and maintain them.  
 
Capital improvement projects are non‐routine capital expenditures requiring a significant amount of money usually consisting of the 
purchase of equipment, acquisition of land, design and construction of new assets, or the renovation, rehabilitation or expansion of 
existing capital assets.  Capital projects usually have an expected useful life of at least five years.  
 
Capital  improvements make up  the bricks and mortar, or  infrastructure  that all Counties must have  in place  to provide essential 
services to current residents and support new growth and development.  They also are designed to prevent the deterioration of the 
County’s existing infrastructure, and respond to and anticipate the future growth of the County.  A wide range of projects comprise 
capital improvements as illustrated by the examples below:  
 

 court facilities and office buildings; 
 parks, trails open space, and other related facilities;  
 roads, bridges, traffic signals and other traffic control devices including fiber optic infrastructure needed for the operation of 

intelligent transportation systems;  
 landscape beautification projects;  
 computer software and hardware systems other than personal computers and printers;  
 flood control drainage channels, storm drains and retention basins;  
 and major equipment purchases. 

 
 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction  

 
 

 
Return to TOC 

10

 

B 
 

C 
 
 

Growing Counties such as Benton County  face a special set of complex problems.   These Counties need  to build new roads, add 
public amenities such as parks and expand public safety services to maintain, replace, rehabilitate and/or upgrade existing capital 
assets such as roads, parks, and buildings. 
 
Benton County has kept pace with  the  rapid growth  through many new public assets.   Benton County also has completed many 
capital  projects  that  involved  renovating,  rehabilitating  or  expanding  existing  infrastructure  or  buildings.    Notable  projects 
completed since 2004 include the following:   

 
2011  Benton County Health District Tenant Improvement – for Human Services 
2011  Benton County Animal Control Facility  
2010  Fairgrounds Mainline Replacement  
2010  Wiser Parkway 
2009  Remodel Master Control at Benton County Jail 
2009  Horse Heaven Vista Renovations   
2009  CR 397 
2009  800 MHZ – Benton County Emergency Services 
2009  Webber Canyon 
2009  Justice Center District Court Remodel 
2008  Benton County Health District Building  
2008  Horn Rapids Park – Higgins Field Improvements – Phase II 
2007  Red Mountain Viticultural Park 
2007  Fairgrounds Maintenance Shop 
2006  Horn Rapids Park Horse Camp Multi‐Purpose Bldg (Concessions Bldg) 
2006  Cafeteria at Justice Center  
2006  Via Antinori  
2005  New Voting System 
2004  Justice Center Jail Expansion 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction  

 
 

 
Return to TOC 

11

 

B 
 

C 
 
 

Paying for Capital Improvements  
 
In many respects,  the County planning process  for selecting, scheduling and  financing capital  improvements parallels  the way an 
individual might  plan  for  buying  a  new  house  or  car.    This  process  entails  an  assessment  of many  valid  competing  needs,  a 
determination of priorities, an evaluation of costs and financing options and an establishment of realistic completion timeframes.   
 
Guidelines and Policies Used in Developing the CIP 
 
The  Benton  County  Commissioners’  strategic  goals  and  key  objectives  and  the  County’s  financial  policies  provide  the  broad 
parameters for development of the annual capital plan.  Additional considerations include the following:  
 

 Does a project support the County Commissioners’ strategic goals?  
 Does a project qualify as a capital project as defined in the County Budget Policy and have an expected useful life of at least 

five years?  
 Does a project satisfactorily address all federal, state and County legal and financial requirements?  
 Does a project support the County’s favorable investment ratings and financial integrity?  
 Does a project support the County’s goal of ensuring all geographic areas of the County have comparable quality in the types 

of services that are defined in the Capital Improvement Plan? 
 Does a project prevent the deterioration of the County’s existing infrastructure, and respond to and anticipate future growth 

in the County?  
 Does a project encourage and sustain quality economic development?  
 Is a project responsive to the needs of residents and businesses within the constraints of reasonable taxes and fees?  
 Does a project leverage funds provided by other units of government where appropriate?  

 
 
 
 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction  

 
 

 
Return to TOC 

12

 

B 
 

C 
 

Master plans also help determine which projects should be included in the CIP and the timeframes in which the projects should be 
completed.  For example, the Countyʹs master plan for its parks system, called the ʺParks Comprehensive Planʺ, was completed in 
2009.  Through a public process, the Parks Comprehensive Plan inventoried the communityʹs existing recreational assets and 
forecasted future demand; then looked at what additions or improvements could be made to existing park lands to meet those 
needs, and what opportunities may exist for the addition of new park lands to the system. 
 
Economic  forecasts also are a critical source of  information and guidance  throughout  the capital planning process.   The  forecasts 
assess external  factors such as whether  the  local economy  is growing or contracting, population growth,  inflation  for construction 
materials, the value of land, and other variables that may affect the County’s ability to finance needed services and capital projects.  
 
Benton County’s Biennial CIP Development Process  
 
In conjunction with the biennial budgeting process, the Commissioners' Office coordinates  the countywide process of revising and  
updating the County’s capital plan.  County staff members from all departments participate in the extensive review of projects in the 
existing plan and the identification of new projects for inclusion in the CIP.  The County Commissioners' commitment to the  needs 
and desires of Benton County citizens is a critical factor considered during the capital planning process, as well as compliance with 
legal limits and financial resources.  
 
The Commissioners appropriate the first two years of the plan.  The remaining four years are for planning purposes and funding is 
not guaranteed  to occur  in  the year planned.   County Commissioners make  the final decision about whether and when  to  fund a 
project.  
 
Once projects are selected for inclusion in the capital plan, decisions must be made about which projects should be recommended for 
inclusion in the first two years of the plan.  Determining how and when to schedule projects is a complicated process.  It must take 
into account the County Commissioners’ strategic goals as well as all of the variables that affect the County’s ability to generate the 
funds  to pay  for  these projects without  jeopardizing  its  ability  to provide  routine,  ongoing  services  and  one‐time  or  emergency 
services when needed.  



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Introduction  

 
 

 
Return to TOC 

13

 

B 
 

C 
 

Prior to County Commissioners' consideration of the proposed CIP, the capital projects are reviewed and evaluated to ensure there 
is a  revenue  source  for all of  the estimated expenditures.  In  recent years, some of  the capital project  revenue  sources have been 
obligated  to pay down outstanding debt  issuance;  therefore,  in‐depth discussions assist  the County Commissioners  in making  the 
best current and future business decisions.   
 
The County Commissioners review the recommended CIP during a special scheduled workshop.  Commissioners also consider the 
recommendations of staff before making the final decision about which projects should be included in which years of the CIP.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Impact of the CIP on the Operating Budget  

 
 

 
Return to TOC 

14

 

B 
 

C 
IMPACT OF THE CIP ON THE OPERATING BUDGET 

 
Benton County’s operating budget is directly affected by the CIP.  Almost every new capital improvement entails ongoing expenses 
for routine operation, repair and maintenance upon completion or acquisition.  Also, many new capital facilities require the addition 
of new positions.   Existing County  facilities and equipment  that were once  considered  state‐of‐the art will  require  rehabilitation, 
renovation  or  upgrades  to  accommodate  new uses  and/or  address  safety  and  structural  improvements.   Older  facilities  usually 
involve  higher maintenance  and  repair  costs  as well.    Pay‐as‐you‐go  capital  projects,  grant‐matching  funds  and  lease/purchase 
capital expenses also come directly from the operating budget.  
 
The costs of  future operations and maintenance  for new CIP projects are estimated based on  the current cost of similar buildings 
and/or departments.   Various departments have experts on different types of operating costs are consulted in order to provide the 
most accurate estimates.  Operating costs are carefully considered in deciding which projects move forward in the CIP because it is 
not  possible  for  the  County  to  fund  concurrently  several  large‐scale  projects  that  have  significant  operating  budget  impacts.  
Therefore, implementation timetables are established that stagger projects over time. 
 
County Commissioners review operating and maintenance costs associated with capital projects scheduled  to come on‐line  in  the 
upcoming  fiscal  year  during  the  budget workshops.    If  operating  and maintenance  costs  have  been  identified  in  a  project  the 
departments are required to either absorb the additional costs or submit a supplemental request to receive funding.  Supplemental 
requests for CIP operating and maintenance costs are balanced against other requests for additional funding. 
 
 
 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Summary by Funding Type  

 

 
Return to TOC 

15

 

B
 

 

C   
SUMMARY BY FUNDING TYPE 

 
Benton County’s CIP contains a wide range of projects that make up a well‐rounded, long‐range program for County improvements.  
 
The  graph  below  shows  new  FY  2011‐2012  CIP  projects  by  funding  type,  excluding  grant  appropriation  and  carryover.    The 
following section includes a summary of all capital projects by fund.   A narrative description of the major CIP categories precedes 
the project detail  sheets  for each project.   Each detail  sheet contains a project  identification name, a short project description,  the 
anticipated funding source, projected costs for each of the six years, and the operating impact, if any.  The operating impact section 
remains  expanded  to  show  approximately how much will be  spent on personnel,  supplies, utilities,  insurance,  etc.  along with  a 
description of the operating impact. 
 

FY 2011-2012 NEW CIP PROJECTS BY FUNDING BY TYPE ($4,776,156) 
(excludes carryover and grant appropriation) 

 

Unfunded Projects
21%

Fairground Improvement 
Fund
1%

Park Development Fund
2%

Capital Project Fund
27%

REET Fund
5%

REET Technology
3%

Jail Depreciation Reserve 
Fund
16%

CRIMP Fund
25%



Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st) $        15,963,507  $           16,347,188  $         16,050,288  $         14,690,288  $      15,000,288  $         15,750,288 
REVENUE             1,250,000                 1,250,000               1,250,000               1,250,000            1,250,000               1,250,000 
CIP PROJECTS              (316,319)                 (996,900)            (2,110,000)               (440,000)                          ‐                             ‐ 
OTHER EXPENDITURES              (550,000)                 (550,000)               (500,000)               (500,000)             (500,000)               (500,000)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 16,347,188$        16,050,288$           14,690,288$         15,000,288$         15,750,288$       16,500,288$        

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st) $             286,686  $                386,686  $              426,686  $              526,686  $           626,686  $              726,686 
REVENUE                100,000                    325,000                  125,000                  100,000               100,000                  100,000 
CIP PROJECTS                            ‐                    (60,000)                            ‐                             ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
OTHER EXPENDITURES                            ‐                  (225,000)                 (25,000)                            ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 386,686$             426,686$                526,686$               626,686$              726,686$            826,686$             

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st) $             387,919  $                397,369  $              322,819  $              301,269  $           213,219  $              222,669 
REVENUE                  16,950                      16,950                    16,950                    16,950                 16,950                    16,950 
CIP PROJECTS                  (7,500)                   (91,500)                 (38,500)               (105,000)                 (7,500)               (155,000)
OTHER EXPENDITURES                            ‐                                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 397,369$             322,819$                301,269$               213,219$              222,669$            84,619$               

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st) $          1,459,313  $             1,562,889  $           1,441,465  $           1,520,041  $        1,623,617  $           1,727,193 
REVENUE                350,000                    350,000                  350,000                  350,000               350,000                  350,000 
CIP PROJECTS                            ‐                  (225,000)                 (25,000)                            ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
OTHER EXPENDITURES              (246,424)                 (246,424)               (246,424)               (246,424)             (246,424)               (246,424)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 1,562,889$          1,441,465$             1,520,041$           1,623,617$           1,727,193$         1,830,769$          

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st) $          1,077,354  $                697,276  $              667,198  $              503,120  $           589,042  $              767,042 
REVENUE                178,000                    178,000                  178,000                  178,000               178,000                  178,000 
CIP PROJECTS              (558,078)                 (208,078)               (342,078)                 (92,078)                          ‐                             ‐ 
OTHER EXPENDITURES                            ‐                                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 697,276$             667,198$                503,120$               589,042$              767,042$            945,042$             

FUND 0110‐102                                
PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

FUND 0130‐101                                
REET FUND

FUND 0305‐101                                
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

FUND 0123‐101                                
FAIRGROUND IMPROVEMENT FUND

2015‐2016
FUND 0142‐101                                

JAIL DEPRECIATION RESERVE
2011‐2012 2013‐2014

2013‐2014 2015‐2016

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

FY 2011 ‐ 2016 Capital Improvement Plan
Summary of All Capital Projects by Funding Type 

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

2011‐2012

16
Return to TOC



FY 2011 ‐ 2016 Capital Improvement Plan
Summary of All Capital Projects by Funding Type 

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st) $             148,891  $                  15,391  $                15,391  $                15,391  $             15,391  $                15,391 
REVENUE                            ‐                                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
CIP PROJECTS              (133,500)                               ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
OTHER EXPENDITURES                            ‐                                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 15,391$               15,391$                  15,391$                 15,391$                15,391$              15,391$               

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st) $             691,506  $             1,291,506  $              176,506  $              351,506  $           526,506  $              526,506 
REVENUE                600,000                    600,000                  600,000                  600,000               600,000                  600,000 
CIP PROJECTS ‐                          (1,180,000)             ‐                             ‐                           ‐                        ‐                          
OTHER EXPENDITURES                            ‐                  (535,000)               (425,000)               (425,000)             (600,000)               (600,000)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) 1,291,506$          176,506$                351,506$               526,506$              526,506$            526,506$             

Estimated Beginning Balance (Jan 1st) $                         ‐  $                            ‐  $         (1,000,000) $         (1,000,000) $       (1,000,000) $         (6,970,000)
REVENUE                            ‐                                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
CIP PROJECTS                            ‐               (1,000,000)                            ‐                             ‐           (5,970,000)            (6,980,000)
OTHER EXPENDITURES                            ‐                                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                           ‐                             ‐ 
Estimated Ending Fund Balance (Dec 31st) ‐$                         (1,000,000)$            (1,000,000)$          (1,000,000)$          (6,970,000)$       (13,950,000)$       

2015‐2016
FUND NAME                                 

UNFUNDED PROJECTS
2011‐2012 2013‐2014

FUND 0129‐101                                
REET TECHNOLOGY

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

2015‐2016
FUND 0101‐102                                
CRIMP FUND

2011‐2012 2013‐2014

17
Return to TOC



. Capital Fund

 

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

CAPITAL  PROJECT  FUND is  for  routine  capital  outlay  purchases  and
projects by  the  county  including but not  limited  to  office  furniture, major
building  maintenance,  real  property  acquisition,  building  remodeling
projects,  road projects, and water projects. Said  funds  shall be  invested by
the Benton County Treasurer with interest accruing to the Current Expense
fund.   
 

CCAAPPIITTAALL FFUUNNDD  



Benton County
Geographic
Information

Systems
Department

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

Benton County Courthouse Projects
Pages 18-20

Juvenile Justice Center/Kennewick Annex Projects

Page 21

County Wide Projects-Courthouse, JJC/KennAnnex, Justice Center

Pages 22-31

Capital Fund



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 30,719$               10,719$               10,000$               10,000$               ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     

TOTAL 30,719$               10,719$               10,000$               10,000$               ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 20,000$               ‐$                      10,000$               10,000$               ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 10,719                 10,719                 ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       

TOTAL 30,719$               10,719$               10,000$               10,000$               ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     

2013‐2014 2015‐2016

2011‐2012 2013‐2014

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET
2011‐2012

Purpose and Need

History and Current Status

If the building is removed, the County would save on the small expense of electricity, utilities and insurance that currently is on this facility. Once the area is cleared and
grass is planted, the O&M would consist of mowing and watering the area until a decision is made whether a new document storage/equipment garage is necessary and in
the best interest of the County.  

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

Demolition Of Engineering Building

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Operating and Maintenance Impact

This building was built back in the late 1940ʹs and was called the ʺEngineering Buildingʺ as the Benton County Public Works Department utilized this building until the late
1980ʹs, when at that time Benton County Courthouse was reconstructed for this department. This building is currently being used by all departments for document storage.
The estimated cost shown below is for A/E fees to perform a study on the cost of lead paint and asbestos removal. 

Prosser Ave., Prosser, WA 

This project consists of the complete demolition of the Engineering Building to include the pipe chase tunnel. Once the building is removed, this area would be planted in
grass and possibly a small concrete slab for a courtyard area with picnic tables until a further decision is made to move forward with the construction of a new building for
the use of document storage and small garage to store all necessary facilities equipment.    

This building has aged over the years and the County recently experienced a flood due to heavy rains. Several documents were damaged and the cost to maintain the
facility outweighs the cost to bring the building up to the standard codes and regulations. Currently the documents that are in the building can be moved to an
environmentally safe area at the County shop in Prosser until a decision is made to build a new storage facility. 

2015‐2016

Description and Scope

18
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 2,500,000$          ‐$                      500,000$             2,000,000$          ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
GRANT (IF AWARDED)  500,000               ‐                        ‐                        500,000               ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       

TOTAL 3,000,000$          ‐$                      500,000$             2,500,000$          ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 86,000$               ‐$                      86,000$               ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 2,914,000            ‐                        414,000               2,500,000            ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       

TOTAL 3,000,000$          ‐$                      500,000$             2,500,000$          ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     

Benton County Courthouse Renovation 
620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350

Description and Scope

This first phase of a planned multi‐phased restoration project of the Courthouse will address the restoration of the buildingʹs exterior including entry steps, exterior doors
and windows, removal of an exterior fire escape, exterior lighting, and masonry cleaning and repair. Benton County will be applying for the Washington State
Rehabilitation Grant Program, which  is due in November 2011 to help off set the cost of the construction. 

Purpose and Need

The buildings exterior ʺcharacter‐definingʺ architectural material and features are rapidly deteriorating and need to be preserved. Also, current building conditions do not
efficiently accommodate ADA requirements and life and safety systems need to be addressed. It is important that the Prosser Courthouse retain the remaining historic
materials and minimize the impact on the historic integrity of the building.    

History and Current Status

The Benton County Courthouse was built in 1926 and was added to the National Register of Historic Places in 1976. Benton County applied for the Washington State
Rehabilitation Grant Program in September 2009 and unfortunately was not one of the Counties who was selected for the grant award due to the overwhelming response
from so many Counties and priority needs.  We will be applying once again for the Rehabilitation Grant Program in November 2011.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Benton County Facilities Supervisor schedules one maintenance employee to work at the Courthouse two days a week. Current cost associated with the courthouse
operating and maintenance up keep on the existing building is budgeted at approximately $15,000 annually. However, it is believed that once the restoration of this
building is complete, the maintenance cost would decrease as the areas that require so much maintenance would be refurbished. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

19
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 15,000$              7,000$                8,000$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

TOTAL 15,000$              7,000$                8,000$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 15,000$              7,000$                8,000$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 15,000$              7,000$                8,000$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Currently, Benton County Facilities have employees who perform all of the janitorial duties here at the Courthouse after business hours. The operating and maintenance
impact should remain about the same on this proposed project as there will only be walls removed and two restrooms remodeled. The need for general janitorial service and
utilities should remain status quo. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Purpose and Need

The District Court Jury Room, located on the 3rd floor of the Benton County Courthouse, has not been updated since 1926. The room has a dual use, which consist of storage
of files and office supplies and is the room where the jury goes to deliberate and/or gather waiting to see if they will be selected. This area is extremely difficult to traverse as
it is not ADA compliant.  Most recently the room had 19 potential jurors sitting and standing waiting to be interviewed. 

History and Current Status

Though different areas of this building have been switched around in order to serve different purposes, the structure of this area that is currently being used for the District
Court Jury Room has retained its original floor plan. This room is not efficiently serving its purpose and is not in compliance with ADA requirements. Dollars shown below
is an estimation for Architectural fees to perform a cost analysis study for this project.    

District Court Jury Room Remodel
620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99352

Description and Scope

The remodel of the current District Court Jury Room would consist of expanding the current bathroom that is used by the District Court Judge and remodel a new ADA
compliant restroom for the jurors; remodeling the current bathroom that is used by jurors for the judge; construct a wall across the Clerkʹs Office space with a wide doorway;
and remove the current interior concrete wall allowing for a large room with two different sitting areas for when a larger jury is called. 

20
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 250,000$             ‐$                      50,000$               100,000$             100,000$             ‐$                      ‐$                     

TOTAL 250,000$             ‐$                      50,000$               100,000$             100,000$             ‐$                      ‐$                     

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 250,000               ‐                        50,000                 100,000               100,000               ‐                        ‐                       
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       

TOTAL 250,000$             ‐$                      50,000$               100,000$             100,000$             ‐$                      ‐$                     

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The operating and maintenance impact would be minimal. Once the new parking lot is constructed, the operating and maintenance would consist of ʺas neededʺ seasonal
snow removal most likely from one of the county facilities employees and then every seven years or so the County would have to solicit bids for the complete resealing and
restriping of this parking lot.   

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Purpose and Need

This parking lot is used daily by citizens of this community who are doing county business at the Kennewick Annex. This parking lot is also the main entrance for the
Juvenile Justice Center. The parking lot is in extreme need of a circular driveway that provides easy and comfortable turning movements for any vehicle negotiating its way
around the parking lot with safe vision when meeting drivers and be seen by one another.

History and Current Status

This project was originally approved in the 2005‐2009 Capital Facility Plan. Over the years there have been several near misses of accidents and it is very hazardous for
backing out of the parking lot and for pedestrians crossing the parking lot. There is slim options for a vehicle pulling a trailer of any sort being able to pull into this parking
lot and easily get turned back around to exit.  

Kennewick Annex & Juvenile Justice Center Parking
5600 W Canal Drive, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

The south parking lot at the Kennewick Annex, a primary parking lot, is not looped. There is only one entrance and exit, so turnaround space is limited. The parking lot
would require the removal of a portion of the center island landscaping and then resurfacing to make a loop within the parking lot. The parking lot located further down
accessing the Juvenile Justice Center building is in need of resealing and restriping. 

21
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 62,100$               62,100$               ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 62,050               ‐                     12,410               12,410                 12,410               12,410               12,410              

TOTAL 124,150$             62,100$               12,410$               12,410$               12,410$               12,410$               12,410$              

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 62,100                 62,100                 ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 62,050                 ‐                        12,410                 12,410                 12,410                 12,410                 12,410                

TOTAL 124,150$             62,100$               12,410$               12,410$               12,410$               12,410$               12,410$              

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Annual maintenance of the storage area network modules is included in the initial purchase. The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments
for the equipment over a typical five year life. Expanding the capacity of the storage area network is a major component strengthening the countyʹs technology infrastructure.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Purpose and Need

The demand for data storage space is growing continually. The growth is being driven by the increased use of document imaging and audio/video files. While the existing
storage capacity supports the current county needs for active data storage and disk‐to‐disk backups, there is not sufficient space for the kind of growth that is projected for
the next three to five years.

History and Current Status

Benton County installed its first storage area networks in 2004. They each had a capacity of 3.2 TB. At the beginning of 2010, the capacity was expanded to 16 TB. By the end
of 2010, the capacity was again expanded to 32 TB. Part of the rapid increase was the result of putting more data on the storage area networks in order to implement a disk‐to‐
disk backup and disaster recovery plan.

Storage Area Network (SAN) Expansion
Countywide

Description and Scope

Increase storage capacity from 32 terabytes to 48 terabytes by adding a 32 terabyte module to the storage area network at the data center in Kennewick. One of the two 16
terabyte units at that location would then be move to the data center in Prosser to pair with the 32 terabyte unit already in place there. The end result will be 48 terabyte
capacity in the storage area network at each data center.

22
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 60,400$              60,400$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

TOTAL 60,400$              60,400$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 60,400               60,400               ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 60,400$              60,400$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Benton County has used Nortel products in its voice systems dating back into the early 1980ʹs. Avaya, one of the leading providers of voice systems, acquired the Nortel
telephony assets following Nortelʹs bankruptcy in 2009. Avaya has established a migration path for current Nortel customers that leverages existing equipment while adding
features of Avaya systems.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

There will be no ongoing expenses following the upgrade until a more comprehensive system upgrade planned for 2014. The proposed interim upgrade is necessary to
pursue the required migration path. Delaying the upgrade until after 2011 will add substantially ($36,000) to the costs as the licensing maintenance on the current software
expires at the end of the year.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

This project involves upgrading software and some hardware components in the existing county voice system. It is part of a migration path developed by Avaya that
continues Nortelʹs long standing policy of reusing as much hardware as possible while improving technology and feature sets. It is a transitional step in anticipation of a
more comprehensive upgrade in 2014.

Purpose and Need

The introduction of new Avaya Aura features into the existing county voice system will be necessary for future migration of the county voice system from the current Nortel
platform to Avaya. If done in 2011, the software upgrade can also take advantage of maintenance on the existing software licensing that is effective through the rest of this
year (2011).

History and Current Status

Voice System Transition
Countywide

Description and Scope

23
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 22,300$              22,300$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 22,300               ‐                     4,460                 4,460                  4,460                 4,460                 4,460                

TOTAL 44,600$              22,300$              4,460$                4,460$                4,460$                4,460$                4,460$               

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 22,300               22,300               ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 22,300               ‐                     4,460                 4,460                  4,460                 4,460                 4,460                

TOTAL 44,600$              22,300$              4,460$                4,460$                4,460$                4,460$                4,460$               

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Most of the edge switches were put into the Replacement Fund. However, rather than replace a device that was functioning well, we have used those funds for equipment to
expand the county network. This has been a successful strategy until recently when the pace of expansion has increased beyond the available resources. It is time to get
back to a base for the next ten plus years.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments for the equipment over a typical five year life. Newer switches should improve performance
for the departments that are making heavy use of imaging and multimedia files. It is also another important step toward strengthening the countyʹs information technology
infrastructure.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

One of the major groups of equipment in the county network includes the edge switches. Most computers and printers are plugged into these switches as their route to the
rest of the network within county facilities. This project involves replacing the edge switches for the high traffic volume locations where operational – but aging – edge
switches are currently installed.

Purpose and Need

Most of the edge switches in service at the county were purchased in the late 1990ʹs. While they have life time warranties and are still functioning, the technology built into
them is getting dated to the point they are struggling with the more current technology in other parts of the network. This situation is creating performance bottlenecks at the
Justice Center and Kennewick Annex.

History and Current Status

Network Switches
Countywide

Description and Scope

24
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 8,100$                ‐$                    8,100$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 6,480                 ‐                     ‐                     1,620                  1,620                 1,620                 1,620                

TOTAL 14,580$              ‐$                    8,100$                1,620$                1,620$                1,620$                1,620$               

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 8,100                 ‐                     8,100                 ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 6,480                 ‐                     ‐                     1,620                  1,620                 1,620                 1,620                

TOTAL 14,580$              ‐$                    8,100$                1,620$                1,620$                1,620$                1,620$               

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

For the last ten months, Central Services has been deploying and testing a wireless overlay to allow limited public access to the internet (separate from the county access) and 
to support some projects in the Commissionersʹ office and courts involving iPadʹs. As more users have begun to connect to the overlay, it has become clear that expanding it
will be beneficial in a number of areas. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments for the equipment over a typical five year life. Wireless connectivity was a recommendation
included in the Information Technology Strategic Plan developed by PTI. Expanding the existing wireless overlay is another step in strengthening the countyʹs information
technology infrastructure.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Expand the wireless overlay coverage in the main county facilities: Courthouse, Justice Center, Kennewick Annex/Juvenile Justice Center. Specifically, this project involves
installation of two more wireless controllers – one in the Courthouse and one in the Kennewick Annex – along with up to thirty‐two more wireless access points in the three
main county buildings. 

Purpose and Need

Wireless connectivity has been added to portions of the main facilities, mostly covering the Commissioners hearings rooms and the courtrooms. There is growing interest in
having wireless access to the internet and county resources for the public and employees with laptops and tablets. To cover the facilities completely will require additional
controllers and access points.

History and Current Status

Wireless Overlay Expansion
Countywide

Description and Scope

25
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 98,800$              98,800$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 105,800             ‐                     21,160               21,160                 21,160               21,160               21,160              

TOTAL 204,600$            98,800$              21,160$              21,160$               21,160$              21,160$              21,160$             

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 98,800               98,800               ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 105,800             ‐                     21,160               21,160                 21,160               21,160               21,160              

TOTAL 204,600$            98,800$              21,160$              21,160$               21,160$              21,160$              21,160$             

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

While we are able to do some upgrades and patching with command files that run as part of the user login scripts, most of this work still requires the time for someone to go
to the device. Over time this has occupied a larger portion of Central Services staff time. Asset management is included in the recommendations in the Information
Technology Strategic Plan developed by PTI.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments for the equipment over a typical five year life and annual maintenance for the software. This is 
a significant project a major benefit of which includes freeing up resources that could be put into more direct efforts to assist departments in optimizing their use of
information technology. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

This project involves acquiring a system for centralized management of hardware and software. It would allow for real time inventory of installed hardware and software, as
well as, provide a platform for pushing software upgrades and patches to the equipment. The estimate also includes modules for formalizing a technology help desk and
work order management.

Purpose and Need

As identified in the Information Technology Strategic Plan report, the county has no formalized system for managing technology assets. Inventorying the hardware or
software installed requires physically checking each device, which also limits the effectiveness of responding quickly to the growing frequency of computer related hacks
and attacks. This is the most important technology addition for moving forward.

History and Current Status

Computer Asset Management System
Countywide

Description and Scope

26
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 159,500$            ‐$                    159,500$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 159,560             ‐                     ‐                     39,890                 39,890               39,890               39,890              

TOTAL 319,060$            ‐$                    159,500$            39,890$               39,890$              39,890$              39,890$             

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 159,500             ‐                     159,500             ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 159,560             ‐                     ‐                     39,890                 39,890               39,890               39,890              

TOTAL 319,060$            ‐$                    159,500$            39,890$               39,890$              39,890$              39,890$             

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The existing video conferencing equipment (with the exception of the monitors) was acquired in 2004. It is ready for replacement. Since then the use of video conferencing
technologies to save travel expense and time has expanded significantly. Much of this is due the increased availability of broadband networks, the quality of high definition
imaging, and the desire to reduce the expenses and time associated with travel whether it involves a flight across the country or a judge presiding at a hearing with the
defendant never leaving the jail.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments for the equipment over a typical five year life and annual software maintenance. Video
conferencing equipment in addition to the existing Board hearing rooms is not included. The project just builds the infrastructure necessary to support video conferencing of
various types added in the future. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

This project involves upgrading the existing video conferencing equipment in the Board hearing rooms and installing a Tandberg network‐wide video conferencing
management infrastructure to facilitate future expansion of video conferencing locations and use. The proposed system will manage everything from full room video
environments to laptops with mobile video cameras.

Purpose and Need

“Face time” meetings using video conferencing have become a proven and widely used tool for the more effective use of time and resources. This project puts the
infrastructure in place to expand and manage video conferencing within the county wide area network and via the internet. It includes the ability to broadcast Board
meetings inside the county network.

History and Current Status

Video Conferencing Upgrade & Infrastructure
Countywide

Description and Scope

27
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 55,000$              55,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 1,035,370          198,110             203,110             203,110               143,680             143,680             143,680            

TOTAL 1,090,370$         253,110$            203,110$            203,110$             143,680$            143,680$            143,680$           

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 55,000               55,000               ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 1,035,370          198,110             203,110             203,110               143,680             143,680             143,680            

TOTAL 1,090,370$         253,110$            203,110$            203,110$             143,680$            143,680$            143,680$           

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The last countywide upgrade for Office was from version 97 to 2000. Upgrading the current user base would cost around $250,000. A comparable expense would need to be
repeated every two or three years to keep the versions current. In the Information Technology Strategic Plan, PTI estimated a minimum cost of about $103,000 to migrate
from GroupWise to Exchange with ongoing costs averaging about $15,000.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The Enterprise Agreement involves fixed annual costs with periodic additions for added users. The one time costs in this estimate are for professional services to assist with
planning the migration from GroupWise and for additional servers to support the Microsoft infrastructure. The ongoing costs also include five years of Replacement Fund
assessments for additional servers.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

This project involves committing the county to a Microsoft Enterprise Agreement. This involves a minimum of three years with the most cost benefits gained by extending to
six years. An Enterprise Agreement includes the licensing necessary to migrating to Microsoft Exchange email and upgrading Microsoft Office productivity software for all
county workstations.

Purpose and Need

As noted in the Information Technology Strategic Plan, “most users consider Microsoft Exchange the standard for large organizations.” The same is true of the Microsoft
Office productivity products like Word, Excel and PowerPoint. The project would migrate the county to current versions of Exchange email with Outlook clients and the full
suite of Office products. The program also keeps the software at all levels current.

History and Current Status

Microsoft Enterprise Agreement
Countywide

Description and Scope

28
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 222,000$            ‐$                    222,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 146,000             ‐                     ‐                     36,500                 36,500               36,500               36,500              

TOTAL 368,000$            ‐$                    222,000$            36,500$               36,500$              36,500$              36,500$             

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 222,000             ‐                     222,000             ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 146,000             ‐                     ‐                     36,500                 36,500               36,500               36,500              

TOTAL 368,000$            ‐$                    222,000$            36,500$               36,500$              36,500$              36,500$             

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The county data centers now house nearly forty servers supporting the general infrastructure and applications used by county departments. While virtualization has been
around for many years, it has now matured to the level of being considered a best practice in the industry. This is an area identified by the Information Technology Strategic
Plan as a component of a “robust technical infrastructure” (p. 11).

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments for the data center equipment over a typical five year life and annual maintenance of
virtualization software. These expenses could vary considerably depending on the level of virtualization that adopted by the county and the products that are selected for
managing the virtualized environment. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Virtualizing the county servers involves moving away from many independent servers running specific applications or functions and combining them into a few high
capacity devices that will run multiple virtual servers. This area is just now being investigated by Central Services staff. The cost estimate is developed from the Information
Technology Strategic Plan report.

Purpose and Need

The primary goal of virtualization is to reduce the number of physical devices in order to reduce the maintenance requirements of physical devices in both in staff time and
power usage. Virtualization also provides opportunities for improving up‐time by clustering servers and adding fail‐over technologies that automatically switch applications
from a failed server to an active one.

History and Current Status

Server Virtualization
Countywide

Description and Scope

29
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 340,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    340,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                   
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 99,440               ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     49,720               49,720              

TOTAL 439,440$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    340,000$            49,720$              49,720$             

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 340,000             ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      340,000             ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 99,440               ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     49,720               49,720              

TOTAL 439,440$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    340,000$            49,720$              49,720$             

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Every five to six years, the county voice systems have been upgraded to newer technology and increased capacity. In the last couple of cycles, these upgrades have including
leasing most of the equipment which has become less advantageous as the technology changes. Purchasing and incorporating into the Replacement Fund is what is proposed
here.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments or leases for the equipment over a typical five year life. They also include software
maintenance and technical support contracts for the systems. No doubt the upgrade will reflect the continuing trend of convergence in voice and data systems into what is
broadly described as unified communications.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

This project involves a continuation of the migration from the existing Nortel platform to the current Avaya voice technology. With the acquisition of Nortelʹs telephony
assets in 2009, Avaya committed to Nortelʹs long standing practice of reusing existing hardware while enhancing and expanding features and functionality. The project will
begin with a review and updated design.

Purpose and Need

As with other aspects of information technology, the county voice systems are constantly expanding in both capacity and functionality. The leases on the existing equipment
will be ending in 2014 and will need to be replaced with new leases or purchases in order to continue the migration of the voice systems from Nortel to the supported Avaya
platforms.

History and Current Status

Voice System Upgrade
Countywide

Description and Scope

30
Return to TOC



CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 39,300$              ‐$                    39,300$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 10,040               ‐                     ‐                     2,510                  2,510                 2,510                 2,510                

TOTAL 49,340$              ‐$                    39,300$              2,510$                2,510$                2,510$                2,510$               

ARCHITECT DESIGN AND FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 39,300               ‐                     39,300               ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 10,040               ‐                     ‐                     2,510                  2,510                 2,510                 2,510                

TOTAL 49,340$              ‐$                    39,300$              2,510$                2,510$                2,510$                2,510$               

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

There is currently a paging phone system installed at the Justice Center which includes phones in all of the designated safe rooms. It is a Nortel system which is no longer
available. The expansion involves adding an application developed for Avaya phone systems by Datapulse. While the proposed system is separate from the existing one, it
will seamlessly communicate with it and the rest of the county voice system.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The ongoing costs for this project are associated with replacement assessments for the equipment over a typical five year life and annual maintenance for the paging system
software. The retrofitted cabling in the Juvenile Justice Detention facility will not only allow for extension of the paging system, but will also resolve long standing problems
with extending the county network into that facility.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

This project originated with Personnel/Insurance Management and involves expanding the paging phones used for internal emergency communications to the Courthouse
and Juvenile Justice/Kennewick Annex. Specifically, it adds a stand alone paging system for 30 paging phones and requires installation of structured cabling for Juvenile
Justice Detention.

Purpose and Need

The paging phones are used for emergency communications within the county facilities and require phone sets capable of IP (Internet Protocol) telephony. The data and
voice cabling in Juvenile Justice Detention is not capable of handling IP telephony, and the facility will need to be retrofitted with 48 Cat 5e or better ports which would be
used for both voice and data.

History and Current Status

Expand Paging Phone System
Courthouse & Juvenile Justice/Kennewick Annex

Description and Scope

31
Return to TOC



. 

 

E.R.&R. ‐ Equipment 
Rental & Revolving  

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

EQUIPMENT RENTAL & REVOLVING (E.R.&R.) –  In  1977,  Benton 
County established an Equipment Rental and Revolving Fund  (ER&R) to 
finance the maintenance, operations and acquisition of goods used by the 
County  Road  Department  and  other  Benton  County  Departments.  The 
County  Engineer  administers  the  fund  and  establishes  the  rates  for  the 
rental  of  equipment  owned  by  ER&R,  which  shall  cover  all  costs  of 
maintenance and repair, materials and supplies consumed in operating or 
maintaining the equipment, and the future replacement thereof. 
 

EE..RR..&&..RR ‐‐ EEQQUUIIPPMMEENNTT 
RREENNTTAALL && RREEVVOOLLVVIINNGG



Benton County
Geographic
Information

Systems
Department

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

Legend

TempArea

A CityLabel

temp

Maintenance Shop

Road

WaterBody

CityLimits

Benton City

Kennewick

Prosser

Richland

West Richland

Kennewick

Richland

Wiser Parkway Project - (other locations being considered)
Page 32

ER & R Fund



ER&R 2,045,900$          ‐$                      500,000$             1,500,000$          15,000$               15,300$               15,600$              

TOTAL 2,045,900$          ‐$                      500,000$             1,500,000$          15,000$               15,300$               15,600$              

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 200,000$             ‐$                      200,000$             ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 1,700,000            ‐                        200,000               1,500,000            ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 100,000               ‐                        100,000               ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 45,900                 ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        15,000                 15,300                 15,600                

TOTAL 2,045,900$          ‐$                      500,000$             1,500,000$          15,000$               15,300$               15,600$              

Maintenance Shop
Wiser Parkway, Kennewick, Washington (other locations being considered)

Description and Scope
A new equipment maintenance building will house offices for the Equipment Maintenance Manager, Road Maintenance Superintendent, and County Sign Department. In
addition, the new building shall include a sign material storage and work area, a crew room with lockers for the road maintenance and equipment maintenance personnel,
a parts storage room, and drive through full service bays. A new heavy equipment storage building will also be constructed. This new facility will replace the 50 year old
building located at 1709 South Ely, Kennewick, Washington.

Purpose and Need

The Kennewick Equipment Maintenance facility was constructed in the early 1960ʹs and in 1981, three shop bays were added. To continue supporting County operations
of vehicle, road, and sign maintenance, the current facility will need a substantial remodel. The current site located on Ely Street is only 4.5 acres. This small area limits
the number of heavy equipment, vehicles, and materials that can be stored including the stockpiling of sand and gravel on the site.  

History and Current Status

The Kennewick Maintenance Shop needs replacing. The cost effectiveness of constructing one centrally located new Maintenance Shop or replacing the current one was
discussed. In 2003, a new Prosser Maintenance Shop on Hinzerling Road was constructed and the former Prosser site sold. The time has come to replace the Kennewick
Maintenance Shop either at the current site or relocate to a better location.

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Maintenance costs should be minimal during the first four years after construction. Operating costs consisting of utilities such as water, garbage, electricity are
guesstimated to be $15,000 for the first year and then an inflationary factor of 2% annually thereafter. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

32
Return to TOC



. 

 

Fairgrounds 
Improvement Fund

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

FAIRGROUNDS  IMPROVEMENT  FUND is  a  fund  established  for  the
purpose of capital improvements to the Benton County Fairgrounds, but not
limited to maintenance and upkeep of the fairgrounds.  

 

FFAAIIRRGGRROOUUNNDDSS 
IIMMPPRROOVVEEMMEENNTT FFUUNNDD



Benton County
Geographic
Information

Systems
Department

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

Benton County Fairgrounds Project
Page 33

Fairgrounds Improvement Fund



FAIRGROUNDS IMPROVEMENT 60,000$              ‐$                    60,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
FAIRGROUNDS O&M (600)                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (200)                   (200)                   (200)                  

TOTAL 59,400$              ‐$                    60,000$              ‐$                    (200)$                  (200)$                  (200)$                 

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 60,000               ‐                     60,000               ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE (600)                   ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (200)                   (200)                   (200)                  

TOTAL 59,400$              ‐$                    60,000$              ‐$                    (200)$                  (200)$                  (200)$                 

Irrigation Infrastructure
Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337

Description and Scope

Install an underground sprinkler system in a grassy area of approximately four acres. The system will include solenoid operated valves and a low voltage timer. The main
supply line will be connected to an existing irrigation line from a recently completed project. The new system would have a different water source than the one currently
used.

Purpose and Need

The area is now supplied through an aging infrastructure that has become problematic and unreliable. The main line runs throughout the grounds so any break in the
system means turning off water for the whole facility. The risers are frequently broken and repairs are costly. The hand lines are manually changed by employees on a daily
basis, which takes a considerable amount of time and effort.

History and Current Status

In 2010, the Fairgrounds completed Phase I and Phase II of the Irrigation Infrastructure. Phase I consisted of installing a new eight inch irrigation main line with an
automatic sprinkler system that would water Fairway Drive and the Kid Zone area. Phase II consisted of installing a new domestic water replacement line, which included
new pipe, risers, and hose bibs.  Additional water rights may need to be secured.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The new underground system will eliminate the need for employee to manually move water lines for the purpose of watering and mowing, which will save several work
hours allowing employees to work on other projects. The new system will be more reliable and easier for the employees to keep the lawn healthy, thus making the grounds
more marketable.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

33
Return to TOC



. 

 
 
 
 
  

Jail Depreciation 
Reserve Fund  

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

JAIL DEPRECIATION RESERVE In 1998, Benton County established a Jail 
Depreciation  Fund  for  the purpose  of  holding monies  collected  from  the 
cities  and  county  for  depreciation  factors  on  the  Benton  County  Jail. By 
establishing and  funding  the  Jail Depreciation Fund  thru  the prisoner bed 
day rate, Benton County hopes to limit the financial impact to the General 
Fund should a catastrophic failure occur in the  jail. Jail Depreciation funds 
shall  also  be  used  to  replace  equipment  vital  to  jail  operations,  which 
usually are expensive in nature. 
  

 

JJAAIILL DDEEPPRREECCIIAATTIIOONN 
RREESSEERRVVEE FFUUNNDD



Benton County
Geographic
Information

Systems
Department

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. Jail Depreciation Fund

Benton County Jail Facility

Pages 34-42



JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND 250,000$             150,000$             100,000$             ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     

TOTAL 250,000$             150,000$             100,000$             ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 150,000               150,000               ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 100,000               ‐                        100,000               ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       

TOTAL 250,000$             150,000$             100,000$             ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Aging equipment requires more maintenance and repair then new equipment. However, before a piece of equipment is replaced, an analysis is performed in order to
determine whether or not it would be beneficial to repair or replace. It is a constant battle of repair, maintenance, and replacement in order to keep the jail kitchen and
other equipment such as the washer & dryers fully operational.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Purpose and Need

Kitchen equipment located in the Benton County Jail is used to prepare and clean up meals three times a day for an average daily jail population of 620 prisoners. Kitchen
equipment can breakdown without warning due to the frequent use. Usually repairs are made, but in some instances the severity of the breakdown constitutes replacing
the entire piece of equipment. 

History and Current Status

In 2008, the kitchen sink was remodeled, a 60 quart mixer was replaced, and a convection steamer was installed. In 2009, a 60 gallon kettle was replaced. In 2010, facilities
started researching various options for replacing the aging dishwasher. This process was long and drawn out, but finally approved in 2011. No other kitchen projects are
on the horizon for 2011 or 2012.

Kitchen & Other Equipment Upgrade
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

The kitchen is a vital part of jail operations. It is responsible for sanitizing dishes and preparing hot meals for prisoners. If the kitchen is shutdown, prisoners can become
agitated and are more difficult to supervise. Money is set aside each year as a place holder for aging equipment or random failures in order to limit the amount of
downtime the kitchen will see. 

34
Return to TOC



JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND 250,000$            250,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

TOTAL 250,000$            250,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 250,000             250,000             ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 250,000$            250,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The OPTO22 Control System was purchased and installed in 2002 during the Justice Center remodel and construction of the new jail. The system has received upgrades to
both the firmware and software throughout the years. However, there have been no upgrades to the hardware since the system was installed and the last upgrade to the
systems software was done in 2007. Currently, there are no minor upgrades available.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The OPTO22 Control System will see an improvement in operations (speed and efficiency) as well as limit the potential for catastrophic failure, which could result in a
costly replacement of the entire system. The life expectancy of the system is estimated to increase significantly because of the upgrade to the hardware, software, and
firmware.  

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

The OPTO22 Control System is the primary system for control of the Jail, along with intercoms, cameras and duress alarms. The system will undergo a major upgrade to
include replacing the 41 controllers for the entire system in the Justice Center along with the new version of software. After completion of the OPTO22 system, the
Maxxess Card Reader System will be upgraded to current standards with a separate project.   

Purpose and Need

The equipment currently being utilized has fallen behind the technology curve. An upgrade is necessary to improve communication between the OPTO22 Control System
and the Maxxess System. In addition, this will enhance the speed and capabilities of the control system and improve stability. The OPTO22 Control System must be
upgraded in order to upgrade the aging Maxxess System.

History and Current Status

OPTO22 Control System Upgrade
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

35
Return to TOC



JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND 50,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    50,000$               ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

TOTAL 50,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    50,000$               ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 50,000               ‐                     ‐                     50,000                 ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 50,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    50,000$               ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Research has shown that sitting for long periods of time can have adverse effects on the human body, which can lead to L & I claims and time off of work. However, some
current alternatives would be to rotate Corrections Officers assigned to Master Control stations every few hours. This would allow time to move around and not be in a
seated position all day, but would require additional officers that specialize in the Master Control position.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Once the new stations are purchased and installed, the Correction Officers will have the option to sit or stand throughout their shift allowing them to be able to move and
stretch as well as watch the various monitors, computer screens, and systems. Additional maintenance and repair may be necessary since the new desks will be equipped
with motorized lifts, however, this cost is unknown at this time. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Replacement of the two operator stations with new stations that allow the operator to either sit or stand. The new desks would be equipped with motorized lifts that
would raise and lower the entire work surface, including computer and video monitors, telephones, intercom, radio and a laptop computer. Included in the project would
also be the replacement of the carpeting in the Master Control Room and a credenza drawer unit.

Purpose and Need

Master Control stations operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Currently, Corrections Officers work 12 hour shifts and are responsible for watching various monitors,
computer screens, and systems. The monitors are usually only visible from a seated position, which limits the amount of time the Correction Officer has to stand up and
stretch. The new stations would allow the Correction Officer the option to sit or stand throughout their shift.

History and Current Status

Master Control Operator Station Replacement
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

36
Return to TOC



JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND 20,000$              20,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

TOTAL 20,000$              20,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 20,000               20,000               ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 20,000$              20,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Currently two Digital Video Recorderʹs are eight years old and one Digital Video Recorder is nine years old. These are the Digital Video Recorderʹs that were installed
during the Justice Center remodel and the construction of the new jail and are coming to the end of their life cycle. The new Digital Video Recorders will extend the life
expectancy of our video system and allow for much more rapid repair in the event of a failure.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The Digital Video Recorders require very little (if any) maintenance and repair. However, as the Digital Video Recorders continue to age, their potential for failure
increases. By replacing the three oldest Digital Video Recorders, Benton County is reducing this potential for failure. The new Digital Video Recorders also have a
warranty period that offers replacement of any defective parts.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Replace the three oldest Digital Video Recorders with three new Digital Video Recorders that have longer recording time, higher resolution, and digital and network
capabilities. These new recorders will also enhance the ability to remotely view video footage in the event of an incident where an archived copy of the video is required.
The existing recorders have very limited capability and video retention times.

Purpose and Need

The old Digital Video Recorderʹs are coming to the end of their life cycle. Parts are no longer accessible due to the fact that the manufacturer has stopped producing these
Digital Video Recorderʹs. The newer Digital Video Recorders offer an increase in efficiency and effectiveness of video retention and improve the quality of the recorded
signal in accordance to the state RCW regarding and archiving of surveillance (RCW 40.14.070).

History and Current Status

Digital Video Recorder Replacement 
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

37
Return to TOC



JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND 32,000$              16,000$              16,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

TOTAL 32,000$              16,000$              16,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 32,000               16,000               16,000               ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 32,000$              16,000$              16,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The Video Visitation System that allows inmates to talk to visitors and attorneys has been in place since the construction of the new jail in 2003. The system is old and is no
longer supported by the manufacturer. However, replacing the entire system is not cost effective as the current system still functions with minor interruptions in service.
This portion of software has been a major frustration to the Clerks that operate the visitation system.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The Video Visitation Systemʹs life cycle will be extended if the computer, software, and CCTV cameras are upgraded. This is much more cost effective than replacing the
entire Video Visitation System, which could run as high as $500,000. This will allow the system to operate smoothly into the future by replacing some of the single‐point‐
of‐failure components and make operation of the system more simple.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

The Video Visitation System will receive a minor overhaul by replacing the computer, upgrading the software used to operate the program, and replacing the CCTV
cameras in an effort to extend the life cycle and add enhanced features. The portion of software that will be upgraded is the station that the Jail Clerks use to setup
visitation sessions for both in‐house visits and internet visits.

Purpose and Need

The current Video Visitation System has not been updated since it was installed in 2003. The equipment we are currently using is falling behind the technology curve. The
new Video Visitation software will allow for session times to be changed and locations to be labeled for easier operation. The new CCTV cameras will increase the quality
and effectiveness of the video feeds between the Jail Lobby and Inmate locations throughout the Jail.

History and Current Status

Video Visitation Computer Upgrade / CCTV Camera Replacement 
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

38
Return to TOC



JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND 30,000$              30,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

TOTAL 30,000$              30,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 30,000               30,000               ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 30,000$              30,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Currently, classifying inmates with physical restrictions can be daunting task because jail bunk beds do not have ladders, which limits the number of beds available.
Facilities has researched various ladder options that will allow inmates safe access to the top bunks. The solution is to solicit quotes from various vendors to manufacture
and install approximately 380 ladders. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact

At this time it is difficult to estimated any additional operating and maintenance impact after the ladders are installed. The ladders may need to be repainted after a few
years of wear and tear and there may be some maintenance and repairs needed because of the destructive nature of inmates. However, this is a trade off Benton County is
willing to take if the ladders reduce the number of injuries incurred while getting in or out of bed.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Purchase and install ladders that have been manufactured for each bunk bed (approximately 380 ladders) located in the Benton County Jail. This will allow inmates safe
access and reduce injuries incurred while getting in and out of the top bunks, as well as facilitate flexibility for the housing of older inmates who are presently unable to be
housed in the top bunks due to physical restrictions.

Purpose and Need

Inmates that are assigned or desire access to the top bunks are required to climb/hoist themselves up and down. This has led to multiple injuries requiring medical
attention that usually the County ends up paying. In some cases, the County has been sued by the injured inmate. The installation of ladders will lead to a reduction in
inmate injury claims as well as improve health and safety in the Jail facility. 

History and Current Status

Jail Bunk Bed Ladders
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

39
Return to TOC



JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND 100,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    100,000$             ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

TOTAL 100,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    100,000$             ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 100,000             ‐                     ‐                     100,000               ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 100,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    100,000$             ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The UPS units were installed in 2002 and 2003 during the Justice Center expansion and construction of the new jail. Battery life expectancy is 5 to 7 seven years. The
batteries were all replaced in April of 2008 and will be due for replacement again in 2013. It is recommended that not only the batteries, but the support hardware be
replaced because of advances in UPS technology.  

Operating and Maintenance Impact

With advancements in UPS technology, the new UPS units will be more efficient, requiring less electricity to keep the batteries charged. This would result in lower
electrical consumption and a cost savings to the County. Replacing the UPS units will also extend the life expectancy of the UPS units well into the future. There is no
added operating costs by completing this project.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Replacement of the Uninterruptible Power Supplies (UPS) systems in the Benton County Jail and Justice Center. This upgrade would replace the batteries, battery
chargers, and power inverters in 5 locations. The UPS units provide constant electrical power to critical systems throughout the Justice Center. Advances in UPS and
battery technology will allow for cleaner, more reliable power, and a reduction in power consumption.

Purpose and Need

The OPTO22 system and the Maxxess Card Reader system rely on clean, conditioned power and power that will not fail in the event of a power outage. The UPS units
provide this power and eliminate spikes, drops, brownouts and blackouts. In the event of total power failure, the UPSʹs are designed to provide 2 hours of run time to
maintain critical systems that operate the Jail and Justice Center.

History and Current Status

Uninterruptible Power Supply Replacement
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

40
Return to TOC



JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND 100,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    100,000$             ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

TOTAL 100,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    100,000$             ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 100,000             ‐                     ‐                     100,000               ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 100,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    100,000$             ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The Maxxess card reader system was installed in 2002 with the Court Expansion and new jail project. The current version is no longer supported and will not be
improved. The system has seen minor changes over the years, but it is due for a major overhaul. The software cannot be replaced until the OPTO22 Control System
upgrade is completed to allow for communication between the two systems.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Operational costs should decrease due to the fact that the hardware we have now is either quite expensive to replace or has to be repaired because replacements are no
longer available. With the new system, there will be fewer components that could fail, which results in better reliability. If the system is not upgraded, future hardware
failures will result in a negative operational impact.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

This upgrade will replace the software and part of the hardware for the card reader system used throughout the Justice Center. The Justice Center and the Jail rely heavily
on the operation and capabilities of this system. The new system will also improve the communications between Maxxess and the OPTO22 Control System, which is
important for proper jail door operations.

Purpose and Need

The upgrade to the Maxxess card reader system will allow for easier expansion, replace out‐dated hardware, allow for current technology hardware and replace the
outdated operating software. The new system will allow for direct network communication with its own components and improve communications with the OPTO22
Control System. 

History and Current Status

Maxxess Card Reader System Upgrade
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

41
Return to TOC



JAIL DEPRECIATION FUND 368,312$            92,078$              92,078$              92,078$               92,078$              ‐$                    ‐$                   
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND (15,200)              (3,800)                (3,800)                (3,800)                 (3,800)                ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 353,112$            88,278$              88,278$              88,278$               88,278$              ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 368,312             92,078               92,078               92,078                 92,078               ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE (15,200)              (3,800)                (3,800)                (3,800)                 (3,800)                ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 353,112$            88,278$              88,278$              88,278$               88,278$              ‐$                    ‐$                   

Nortel Companion Wireless Phone System
Benton County Jail: 7122 W. Okanogan Pl. Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336

Description and Scope

This upgrade replaced the Nortel Companion Wireless Interface with a new Polycom SpectraLink 6300 Wireless Telephone System. The system is an in‐house telephone
system that allows communication to inmate cells via the intercom function. The upgrade included new wireless handsets, antennas, and server hardware. The upgrade
also included a software upgrade and reconfiguration to the Nortel Meridian OPT‐11 system.

Purpose and Need

The wireless phone system allows for audio communication and also allows Pod Officers to have control of their assigned cell doors. The Officers depend on this system
for control, which allows them to open doors more quickly and takes the workload off of the Master Control workstations. The new system also helps facilitate the
upcoming OPTO22 Control System upgrade due to having up‐to‐date equipment and programming.

History and Current Status

The original system was installed in 2003 with the new jail construction. As of 2007, parts were no longer available and handset repair was getting very expensive. Several
thousand dollars per year were spent on handset repair. In 2009, the new Spectralink System was installed and fully functional by January 2010. Benton County entered a
60 month lease which expires December 31, 2014.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The new Spectralink System will have a positive impact on the budget and in Jail Operations. Repair costs will go away and all necessary jail staff will have a wireless
handset assigned. Handsets were at a premium before with only essential personnel having one. The new system is under a maintenance agreement with
Embarq/CenturyLink and future handset repairs will be covered by warranty.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

42
Return to TOC



. 

 

Park Development 
Fund  

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

PARK  DEVELOPMENT  FUND  is  a  cumulative  reserve  fund  for  the
purpose  of  accumulating  and  expending  said  moneys  for  capital
improvements within Benton County parks.  

PPAARRKK  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT 
FFUUNNDD



Benton County
Geographic
Information

Systems
Department

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

Park Developement Fund
Badger Mountain Centennial  Reserve Pojects
Page 43

Horn Rapids Park Projects
Page 45

Horn Rapids Park-Higgins Field Projects
Page 46

Horse Heaven Vista Projects
Page 44

Two Rivers Park Projects
Page 47

Two Rivers Park-East End Projects
Page 48

Vista Park Projects
Page 49



PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND  1,000$                 ‐$                      1,000$                 ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
CURRENT EXPENSE 2,500                 ‐                     500                    500                     500                    500                    500                   
OTHER (GRANTS, DONATIONS, IN‐KIND) 15,000               ‐                     15,000               ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 18,500$               ‐$                      16,500$               500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                      ‐$                     
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 16,000                 ‐                        16,000                 ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 2,500                   ‐                        500                      500                      500                      500                      500                     

TOTAL 18,500$               ‐$                      16,500$               500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Badger Mountain Centennial Preserve

REVENUES

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Orchard Trail: A trail across the lower South Face has been conceptualized for several years, but property ownership issues made it a moot point. With acquisitions in
2010 and 2011, planning for the trail is now a reality. Friends of Badger Mountain will be a primary partner on the project. Westgate: Construction of the original lot was
a major step, but use over the past few years has made evident the shortcomings of the original size and design.  

no street address

This section includes two separate projects ‐‐ the ʺOrchard Trailʺ and upgrades to the Westgate parking area... Orchard Trail: This is slated to be the last major trail built
on the mountain. It will be the longest trail at about 3.5 miles, and will be relatively flat, connecting the east and west property lines... Westgate: This includes upgrades
to and expansion of the gravel parking area and driveway at Westgate off of Dallas Road. 

Orchard Trail: Anticipated for years, by connecting with other existing trails this trail makes large loops possible on the mountain. It will make BMP more useable for
equestrians and provide a flatter grade trail for patrons who do not want to climb... Westgate: The existing lot is undersized, but the main issue is the configuration. This
project will expand the lot and provide for parallel parking along the driveway, and also reshape the lot for easier use.

Description and Scope

PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Purpose and Need

History and Current Status

The situation over the first six years of the Preserve shows us that these improvements have had very little impact on the Countyʹs O&M. The trails are maintained by
Friends of Badger Mountain and the existing parking area at Westgate is maintained by County staff with assistance from the Sheriffʹs Work Crew. This consists mainly of
weed abatement 2‐3 times per year.  This will be the same in the future after the expansion.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

2015‐20162011‐2012 2013‐2014

43
Return to TOC



PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND  15,000$              5,000$                10,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CURRENT EXPENSE 1,000                 ‐                     200                    200                     200                    200                    200                   
OTHER (GRANTS, DONATIONS, IN‐KIND) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 16,000$              5,000$                10,200$              200$                   200$                   200$                   200$                  

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 1,000$                ‐$                    1,000$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 14,000               5,000                 9,000                 ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 1,000                 ‐                     200                    200                     200                    200                    200                   

TOTAL 16,000$              5,000$                10,200$              200$                   200$                   200$                   200$                  

PROJECT BUDGET
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

PARTICIPATING FUNDS
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENU

                                                    Purpose and Need

This section includes two separate projects ‐‐ ʺBoundary Controlʺ and ʺSignageʺ... Boundary Control: This includes a legal survey of the property, with greatest interest in
the south and east property lines; followed by fencing of those property lines... Signage: This includes highway signage off of SR 221 from both directions, a new entrance
sign off of the highway, refurbishment of the historical sign in the park, and possibly interpretive signage within the park.

Description and Scope

Boundary Control: The Horn Rapids Park caretaker currently visits HHV once per week and can add inspection of the fence to his duties. Damage will need to be
addressed on a case‐by‐case basis... Signage: Highway signs will be the responsibility of WSDOT. The HRP caretaker can inspect the internal signage on a weekly basis
and treat for graffiti and vandalism just as he does the restrooms already.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Boundary Control: There is no fencing along the property lines, and the boundaries are unclear as one property basically fades into the next. Our property is bounded by
agricultural lands on the east and south sides... Signage: Other than the large wooden historical sign, there has not been signage at the park for many years if ever. Staff
is prepared to work with WSDOT on highway signage and on an entrance sign.

History and Current Status

Horse Heaven Vista

Boundary Control: We need to demarcate our property and control ingress/egress. Parking and driving across property lines is an issue... Signage: There exists no
signage along the highway that mentions the park. With the exception of the outdated historical sign, there is also no signage within the park that mentions its name,
purpose, history, or rules. 

no street address

44
Return to TOC



PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND  118,000$            2,500$                55,500$              32,500$               22,500$              2,500$                2,500$               
CURRENT EXPENSE 1,700                 ‐                     ‐                     350                     450                    450                    450                   
OTHER (GRANTS, DONATIONS, IN‐KIND) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 119,700$            2,500$                55,500$              32,850$               22,950$              2,950$                2,950$               

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 2,000$                ‐$                    2,000$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 116,000             2,500                 53,500               32,500                 22,500               2,500                 2,500                
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 1,700                 ‐                     ‐                     350                     450                    450                    450                   

TOTAL 119,700$            2,500$                55,500$              32,850$               22,950$              2,950$                2,950$               

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

PARTICIPATING FUNDS
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

A primary goal of all of these projects is to make the park run better, and more efficiently. The one project that may create more O&M work is the new parking area in the
downstream area of the park near the dam, although a positive effect of this new amenity will hopefully be less ʺad‐hocʺ parking, which tends to create an O&M burden,
so we may see some relief there.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Upgrades of the Compound are currently underway, and are slated to occur in four phases. The Water Trail is a feature being created along the lower 30 miles of the
Yakima River with HRP being one of several sites/partners. Dedication is slated to occur in Spring 2012. Parking areas and road work have aesthetic value but are
primarily part of access control measures to protect sensitive areas of the park and keep vehicular traffic out of precarious situations.

History and Current Status

The Compound improvements are intended to expand capacity, which is already exceeded; and also improve safety, security, organization, and cleanliness in the
maintenance area. The road work in the back country areas of the park will protect fragile areas, better channel vehicular use into the appropriate areas, and help with
safety and security. The new parking area will be our first improvement in the downstream area of the park; and the online Campground registration will be a major help
in administering campground stays.

This section contains seven projects: Phase 3 of the Maintenance Compound Improvements, Phase 4 of the Maintenance Compound Improvements, Road and Access
Control work in the back country of the park, Construction of a new parking area near Wanawish Dam, Construction of Water Trail Features throughout the park,
development of an Online Campground Registration System, and creation of a Master Plan for the park.

115803 North State Route 225, Benton City 99320

Purpose and Need

Description and Scope

Horn Rapids Park

45
Return to TOC



PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND  19,500$              ‐$                    14,500$              5,000$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CURRENT EXPENSE 1,000                 ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      500                    ‐                     500                   
OTHER (GRANTS, DONATIONS, IN‐KIND) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 20,500$              ‐$                    14,500$              5,000$                500$                   ‐$                    500$                  

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 19,500               14,500               5,000                  ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 1,000                 ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      500                    ‐                     500                   

TOTAL 20,500$              ‐$                    14,500$              5,000$                500$                   ‐$                    500$                  

PROJECT BUDGET
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

PARTICIPATING FUNDS
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

The County maintains the driveway. The rest of the facility is maintained entirely by the club. Maintenance of the driveway includes checking for and clearing blockages,
an annual treatment for weeds, and then the periodic redress of the surface itself, such as is included in this project. Over time, the driveway incurs some rutting and
wash boarding.  With some machine work and gravel, Public Works is able to restore it to a more favorable condition.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

History and Current Status

Road Improvements: The paved apron would make for a smoother transition from the highway to the driveway. Currently, this area scours easily from the way cars exit
the highway... Protection Measures: Are aimed at better demarcating the site and protecting the pump house from fire. This would include vegetation controls and
irrigation adjustments.  Groundwork:  County would help finish the observation that was built several years ago and help with a flag garden area.

Higgins Field is the model airplane facility within Horn Rapids Park and is leased to a club that operates it. Substantial development and upgrades have occurred over
the past decade, entirely at the motivation of the club. Parks has assisted with larger capital developments, but all of the smaller items are funded by the club, who also is
responsible for all maintenance on the site.

Purpose and Need

This section contains three groups of projects ‐‐ Road Access Improvements: This includes paving the apron off of SR 225 onto the gravel driveway, then doing some
minor grading/gravel work on the 1400‐foot driveway... Protection Measures: Includes rebuilding the perimeter fence around the site and doing work around the pump
house to better protect it from fire... Groundwork:  Adding trees, adding a flag garden, finishing the observation area.

115803 North State Route 225, Benton City 99320

Description and Scope

Horn Rapids Park ‐‐ Higgins Field

46
Return to TOC



PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND  115,500$            ‐$                    10,500$              ‐$                    ‐$                    5,000$                100,000$           
CURRENT EXPENSE 2,000                 ‐                     ‐                     500                     500                    500                    500                   
OTHER (GRANTS, DONATIONS, IN‐KIND) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 117,500$            ‐$                    10,500$              500$                   500$                   5,500$                100,500$           

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 15,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    5,000$                10,000$             
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 90,500               ‐                     10,500               ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     80,000              
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 10,000               ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     10,000              
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 2,000                 ‐                     ‐                     500                     500                    500                    500                   

TOTAL 117,500$            ‐$                    10,500$              500$                   500$                   5,500$                100,500$           

PROJECT BUDGET
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

PARTICIPATING FUNDS
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

The new and improved restroom would reduce O&M expenses slightly. Re‐doing the soft‐fall portion of the playground would reduce O&M associated with keeping the
soft‐contained. Extending the Nature Trail would require monthly mowing and weed maintenance on that area ‐‐ an O&M increase of about 2 hours per month, per year
by the caretaker, and slightly more chemical and fuel expense.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Restroom: Was the original structure built in the park in 1969. It is functional, but prone to back‐up issues and easy vandalism. We would like to replace it by or before
its 50th anniversary... Playground: Play structures are antiquated and get little use. Area also needs shade. The soft‐fall is a maintenance annoyance... Nature Trail: 
Existing trail built in the 1990s.  Extension would open‐up a large unused and interesting portion of the park.

History and Current Status

The Restroom and Playground projects would address the shortcomings of serviceable but aging facilities in the core part of the park. Neither of these facilities meet
modern standards. The Restroom is heavily used and keeps chugging along, while the Playground is quite underused owing to its antiquated and ʺunsexyʺ condition.
The Nature Trail extension would open‐up nearly a mile of little‐used shoreline and wetland areas.

Purpose and Need

This section contains three projects ‐‐ Playground Assessment: A consultant evaluation of the existing playground with an eye toward a major renovation of the site...
Restroom: Replacement of the original main restroom... Nature Trail Extension: Extension of the Nature Trail, which may include a boardwalk, small causeway, or
other feature to bridge the wet areas to get out to the dry ground along the river.  

Description and Scope

213316 East Finley Road, Kennewick 99337

Two Rivers Park

47
Return to TOC



PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND  112,500$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    60,000$              ‐$                    52,500$             
CURRENT EXPENSE 400                    ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     200                    200                   
OTHER (GRANTS, DONATIONS, IN‐KIND) 2,000,000          ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     2,000,000          ‐                    

TOTAL 2,112,900$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    60,000$              2,000,200$         52,700$             

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 7,500$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    5,000$                ‐$                    2,500$               
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 2,100,000          ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      50,000               2,000,000          50,000              
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 5,000                 ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      5,000                 ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 400                    ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     200                    200                   

TOTAL 2,112,900$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    60,000$              2,000,200$         52,700$             

PROJECT BUDGET
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

PARTICIPATING FUNDS
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

This section contains three projects distinct to the Boat Launch ‐‐ TREE Parking Area Upgrades: Includes reshaping and paving the parking lot, adding a restroom, and
redoing the signage... TREE Boat Docks: Replacement of all old decking with new decking that matches the gangways added previously... TREE Harbor: USACW‐
driven project to build a breakwater that would improve habitat and shield the launch site from wakes/waves.

Description and Scope

213316 East Finley Road, Kennewick 99337

Two Rivers Park ‐‐ East End

Operating and Maintenance Impact

While a new restroom would require a little more attention from our onsite caretaker (the existing portable toilet is serviced by a third‐party vendor), this whole project is
envisioned with reducing O&M in mind. Functionality and safety are major components of the dock and harbor work, but reducing our ongoing expenditures to repair
and maintain the existing boat dock facilities are right at the top of the list. 

Purpose and Need

Parking Area: These improvements would add a better, more comfortable, and more attractive restroom; and add efficiency and capacity to the parking lot... Boat Docks: 
New decking would extend the docks to previous extent, be more fish‐friendly, be more attractive, and be safer for users... Harbor: This project allows the Corps to
address habitat concerns it has on its lands, and allows the County to address the biggest issue facing the Boat Launch ‐‐ degradation from wake action.

History and Current Status

This site was developed in the late 1980s as a way to get boats out of the Great Lagoon where the two previous launch sites were located. While this stand‐alone site is
better in many respects, its major drawback is its constant exposure to wind, wakes, and waves. It has been a goal for many years now to upgrade the docks and to build
the harbor if possible, but these are expensive projects.  The Corps is currently working on feasibility for the harbor project.

48
Return to TOC



PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND  23,500$              ‐$                    ‐$                    1,000$                22,500$              ‐$                    ‐$                   
CURRENT EXPENSE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (GRANTS, DONATIONS, IN‐KIND) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 23,500$              ‐$                    ‐$                    1,000$                22,500$              ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 1,000$                ‐$                    ‐$                    1,000$                ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 22,500               ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      22,500               ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 23,500$              ‐$                    ‐$                    1,000$                22,500$              ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

PARTICIPATING FUNDS
2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

This project has no foreseeable additional impact on O&M. The park is currently maintained by the Facilities Department. A possible impact of re‐doing the park is that
they might actually be less lawn to water and mow. Long term, the goal of the Park Board and the Department is and has always been to transfer this park to the City of
Kennewick.  Kennewick has expressed that they are open to that as an eventuality ‐‐ when the Tri‐City Heights neighborhood is annexed into the City.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Vista Park was developed by the Vista Junior Womenʹs Club in 1969 and given to the County in 1970. Staff believes that all of the play equipment in the park dates to that
original development. One item was removed in 2010 (swing). Currently, the park is minimally managed, with lawn and tree care being the focus. The neighborhood
does have some money they would like to donate for this project.

History and Current Status

The existing play equipment is circa 1970. It has held‐up well, but doesnʹt meet modern standards for safety or functionality. Some of it has already been removed. This
project would retrofit the entire play space to more contemporary standards, and would try to align that retrofit with the standards and themes that the City of Kennewick
is using in their parks, given that this may one day become a city park.

Purpose and Need

Removal of the old playground equipment (5 pieces) and installation of newer equipment or play structure. The old equipment is circa 1960s and while mostly
structurally sound, is out‐of‐step with what kids are accustomed to playing on today and goes mostly unused. This project will introduce a more modern play structure
and a dedicated ʺsoft‐fallʺ landing area.  The goal is to work with the City of Kennewick on this project, and they have not ruled‐out a financial contribution to the project.

Description and Scope

no street address

Vista Park

49
Return to TOC



. 

 

R.E.E.T. Fund 

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

1/4  PERCENT REAL  ESTATE  EXCISE TAX  is  a  fund  to  account  for  the
revenues generated by a special 1/4 of 1 percent excise tax levied on the sale
of  real property within  the County.   All projects must  be  included  in  the
annual Benton County Comprehensive Land Use Plan before any spending
is approved.  

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

RR..EE..EE..TT.. FFUUNNDD 



Benton County
Geographic
Information

Systems
Department

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

Benton County Fairgrounds

Pages 50-53

R.E.E.T Fund



REET 100,000$            ‐$                    100,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
FAIRGROUNDS O&M (6,000)                ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (2,000)                (2,000)                (2,000)               

TOTAL 94,000$              ‐$                    100,000$            ‐$                    (2,000)$               (2,000)$               (2,000)$              

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 100,000             ‐                     100,000             ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE (6,000)                ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (2,000)                (2,000)                (2,000)               

TOTAL 94,000$              ‐$                    100,000$            ‐$                    (2,000)$               (2,000)$               (2,000)$              

HVAC Infrastructure
Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337

Description and Scope

Buildings 1, 2, 3, and 4 will receive brand new commercial air conditioning systems that will replace the antiquated swamp coolers. The new systems will be ducted,
which will allow air to be distributed around the building in a more efficient manner, thus cooling the room to the desired temperature. The new systems will also have a
programmable thermostat.

Purpose and Need

The swamp coolers that are located in Buildings 1, 2, 3, and 4 are in need of replacement as they are antiquated, parts are hard to find, and the service technology is
virtually non‐existent. In the heat of the summer, with temperatures reaching as high as 110 degrees Fahrenheit, the swamp coolers have a difficult time keeping the
buildings cool, especially if the building has a lot of people in it. 

History and Current Status

Buildings 1, 2, 3, and 4 were constructed in the 1970ʹs and minimal remodeling and updating have been done. Swamp coolers were installed because they were
considered more efficient than air conditioning units and well suited for climates where the air is hot and the humidity is low. However, these particular units have
reached the end of their life cycle as parts are extremely hard to find as well as a technician that is willing to work on them.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Buildings 1, 2, 3, and 4 will see a reduction in their electricity bill because of the more efficient commercial air conditioning system that will be installed. Also, since the
new system will have a programmable thermostat, staff will be able to control the temperature for the specific dates and times of the event. No more worrying about
clients leaving the air conditioning on in an unoccupied Building.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

50
Return to TOC



REET  50,000$              ‐$                    25,000$              25,000$               ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
FAIRGROUNDS O&M (6,000)                ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (2,000)                (2,000)                (2,000)               

TOTAL 44,000$              ‐$                    25,000$              25,000$               (2,000)$               (2,000)$               (2,000)$              

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 50,000               ‐                     25,000               25,000                 ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE (6,000)                ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (2,000)                (2,000)                (2,000)               

TOTAL 44,000$              ‐$                    25,000$              25,000$               (2,000)$               (2,000)$               (2,000)$              

Electrical/Lighting Infrastructure
Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337

Description and Scope

Cut and remove the concrete surrounding the conduit to 17 existing above ground electrical pedestals (and the pedestals themselves) located in the commercial tent area
(front of Buildings 1 and 2) and replace them with traffic rated electrical box set to grade. Using the current electrical wires a moisture proof J‐box will be set with a four
foot electrical cord with a protective moisture free cap.  The area surrounding the new electrical boxes would be backfilled and patched.

Purpose and Need

The current RV power, mobile home and temporary power pedestals design no longer meets the demands of today’s RV’s, travel trailers, mobile homes and temporary
equipment. Installing underground power pedestals will eliminate the chance of accidentally tripping over a coiled power cord and reduce the risk of fire hazards from
overheated power cords and overloaded outlets.

History and Current Status

There are 17 upright electrical pedestals installed in front of Buildings 1 and 2. Since the pedestals are located in a parking lot they are continuously backed into and even
run over which has an annual estimated costs of $1,500 to $5,000 to replace. The Fair Associationʹs 2011 Benton County Fairgrounds Improvement Plan listed this project
as #2 and offered to split the financial responsibility with Benton County. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact

By relocating the 17 above ground pedestals to underground pedestals, it is estimated that Benton County will save approximately $1,500 ‐ $5,000 ($400 each) per year in
replacement costs. Since the pedestals will be installed flush with the concrete, vehicle parking will be more marketable, snow removal will be quicker and easier, and
there will be fewer accidents (both vehicle and pedestrian).

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

51
Return to TOC



REET  50,000$              ‐$                    50,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
FAIRGROUNDS O&M (1,500)                ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (500)                   (500)                   (500)                  

TOTAL 48,500$              ‐$                    50,000$              ‐$                    (500)$                  (500)$                  (500)$                 

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 50,000               ‐                     50,000               ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE (1,500)                ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (500)                   (500)                   (500)                  

TOTAL 48,500$              ‐$                    50,000$              ‐$                    (500)$                  (500)$                  (500)$                 

Buildings 3 and 4
Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337

Description and Scope

Building 3 requires the installation of newly fabricated sheet metal venting lids and a ceiling grid, the permanent tables removed and the serving bar area remodeled,
interior walls finished and painted a beige color. Building 4 requires the installation of newly fabricated sheet metal vents and a ceiling grid, interior walls finished and
painted a beige color.     

Purpose and Need

These changes will make Buildings 3 and 4 much more marketable as there will be additional square footage and a finished interior for small weddings and queniceras.
During 2011 both buildings had two 12 foot doors and two 8 foot garage style doors replaced which has decreased utility costs, secured the buildings and are much easier
to open and close.  Building 4 has had the permanent stages removed and the double kitchen ceiling replaced.

History and Current Status

Buildings 3 and 4 were constructed in the 1970ʹs and minimal remodeling and updating done. There have been continuous complaints from our clients about the
buildingsʹ conditions. Due to this it has been difficult to charge our clients the fair market value to use these buildings. Building 3 is 60ʹ x 145ʹ = 8,700 square feet with a
capacity of 580 people and Building 4 is 50ʹ x 140ʹ = 8,000 square feet with a capacity of 460 people.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The proposed projects for Building 3 and Building 4 deal with the buildings functionality (removing permanent tables and serving bar) and aesthectics (installing newly
fabricated sheet metal venting lids and ceiling grid as well as finishing and painting the interior walls), which have very little operating and maintenance impact.
However, the remodel should make the buildings more marketable.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

52
Return to TOC



REET 50,000$              ‐$                    50,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
FAIRGROUNDS O&M (1,500)                ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (500)                   (500)                   (500)                  

TOTAL 48,500$              ‐$                    50,000$              ‐$                    (500)$                  (500)$                  (500)$                 

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS 50,000               ‐                     50,000               ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE (1,500)                ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      (500)                   (500)                   (500)                  

TOTAL 48,500$              ‐$                    50,000$              ‐$                    (500)$                  (500)$                  (500)$                 

Building 5
Fairgrounds:  1500 S. Oak Street, Kennewick, WA 99337

Description and Scope

Building 5 will receive a brand new commercial heating and air conditioning system to replace the old heating system and swamp cooler. The new system would be a
ducted unit, which would allow the heating and cooling system to be able distribute air around the building in a more efficient manner bringing the room to the desired
temperature.  The new system would also have programmable thermostat.

Purpose and Need

Currently the heating system in Building 5 is extremely old and outdated. During the winter months, when temperatures are extremely low, it can take as long as 90
minutes in order to raise the temperature to a tolerable level. Even when the room temperature reaches a tolerable level, the heating system has a difficult time
maintaining it.  The Fairgrounds Office Manager has received numerous complaints about this issue.

History and Current Status

Building 5 was constructed in the 1970ʹs and some remodeling and updating done. There have been continuous complaints from our clients about the building conditions.
Due to this it has been difficult to charge our clients the fair market value to use this building. Building 5 is 40ʹ x 80ʹ = 3,200 square feet with a capacity of 120 people.
Building 5 is mainly used for small family reunions and training classes.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Building 5 will see a reduction in the heating and cooling bill because of the more efficient commercial heating and air conditioning system that will be installed. Also,
since the new system will have a programmable thermostat, staff will be able to control the temperature for the specific dates and times of the event. No more worrying
about clients leaving the heat or AC on in an unoccupied Building.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PROJECT BUDGET

53
Return to TOC



. 

 

R.E.E.T.   
Technology Fund  

 

B 
 

C 

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

R.E.E.T.  TECHNOLOGY is  a  fund  established  per  State  of Washington
Legislature SSHB 1240, section 2 to increase excise fees on Real Estate Excise
Tax  to provide  for  the development  and  implementation of  an  automated
system  for  the electronic processing of  the real estate excise  tax compatible
with the system developed by the Washington State Department of Revenue.

 

B 
 

C 

RR..EE..EE..TT TTEECCHHNNOOLLOOGGYY  



Benton County
Geographic
Information

Systems
Department

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

R.E.E.T Technology Fund

Countywide Projects

Page 54  



REET TECHNOLOGY FUND 133,500$            133,500$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CENTRAL SERVICES O&M 47,000               ‐                     9,400                 9,400                  9,400                 9,400                 9,400                

TOTAL 180,500$            133,500$            9,400$                9,400$                9,400$                9,400$                9,400$               

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICES COSTS ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC.) 133,500             133,500             ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 47,000               ‐                     9,400                 9,400                  9,400                 9,400                 9,400                

TOTAL 180,500$            133,500$            9,400$                9,400$                9,400$                9,400$                9,400$               

Migrate Ascend/ProVal to SQL Server & Implement eConvey
Countywide

Description and Scope

Ascend/ProVal are the Manatron systems used by the Treasurer and Assessor for property tax administration and computer aided mass appraisal. This project migrates
the systems from the current IBM Informix database to a Microsoft SQL Server database. This migration will also require modification to a number of ancillary reports and
processes used in both offices.

Purpose and Need

Manatron, the vendor for the Ascend and ProVal applications, has been phasing out support of the Informix database platform installed when the system was acquired in
1998. At this time, Benton County is one of the last of Manatronʹs customers running Informix. Not being on the currently supported database is becoming a hindrance to
getting vendor support and successful implementation of system updates.

History and Current Status

This project is currently being bundled with the implementation of a Manatron product called eConvey. This product facilitates electronic processing of Real Estate Excise
Tax affidavits in a manner similar to that currently done for documents electronically submitted to the Auditorʹs Eagle Recorder system. The REET Fund was instituted by
the legislature to assist counties in meeting Department of Revenue requirements for electronic submission of excise tax data.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The REET Technology Fund is being used for the one‐time costs of this project including the hardware, software and implementation for both the migration to SQL Server
and eConvey. The ongoing costs are associated with replacement assessments for the equipment over a typical five year life and the additional annual software
maintenance paid to Manatron for eConvey.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

54
Return to TOC



. 

 

Unfunded Source 
 

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

UNFUNDED SOURCE are projects that are requested, however, there is no
available funding for these projects.    

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

UUNNFFUUNNDDEEDD SSOOUURRCCEE  



Benton County
Geographic
Information

Systems
Department

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 

Unfunded Source

Bert James Rd-Sellards Rd to SR221
Page 55

Coffin Rd-Nine Canyon Rd to Meals Rd
Page 56

Piert Rd-SR397 to Bowles Rd
Page 59

Sellards Rd-SR221 to Travis Rd
Page 57

Travis Rd-Sellards Rd to Hanson Rd
Page 58



UNFUNDED SOURCE  4,150,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    2,075,000$         2,075,000$        
ROAD FUND  50,000               ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      25,000               25,000               ‐                    

TOTAL 4,200,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    25,000$              2,100,000$         2,075,000$        

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 125,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    25,000               100,000$            ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 3,975,000          ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     1,900,000          2,075,000         
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC) 100,000             ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     100,000             ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE  ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 4,200,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    25,000$              2,100,000$         2,075,000$        

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Operating and Maintenance Impact

The Bert James road was crack sealed in 2010 in preparation for the 2010 chip seal. This road is scheduled for the next chip seal in 2016. Routine road maintenance will
continue. The costs vary from year to year dependent upon the type of weather events that may have occurred during the year. The average annual maintenance and
operating costs are estimated to be $1,500 per mile based on 2011 dollars.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Purpose and Need

Bert James Road is a narrow, hilly farm to market road. The existing lanes are too narrow to accommodate two tractor‐trailer vehicles passing each other, without both
driving on the road shoulders. The road follows the contour of the ground, which contributes to inadequate sight distance on the vertical curves. There are several low
areas that are flooded during storm runoff due to inadequate drainage facilities.

History and Current Status

The project is very close to being ready for construction. The county has surveyed, designed, and purchased the majority of the required right of way. A small amount of
right of way remains to be acquired.  The project was shelved dependent upon priority funding availability with ongoing preservation being a  priority. 

Bert James Road ‐ CE 1774
Sellards Road to SR 221 (4.0 miles)

Description and Scope

Sellards Road to SR 221; 4 miles long; improve site distance by widening this narrow road from 26 feet to 34 feet; improve vertical and horizontal alignment to meet
current safety standards. The section of road is a Minor Collector function classification 08 and is designated a T‐3 freight route serving as trucking shortcut to state
highway 221.  This road will be reconstructed to an all weather road.

55
Return to TOC



UNFUNDED SOURCE 4,500,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    2,060,000$         2,440,000$        

TOTAL 4,500,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    2,060,000$         2,440,000$        

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 380,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    190,000$            190,000$           
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 3,820,000          ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     1,670,000          2,150,000         
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC) 300,000             ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     200,000             100,000            
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE  ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 4,500,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    2,060,000$         2,440,000$        

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

Existing Coffin Road is a designated T‐4 freight route and given a functional classification of 08 for Minor rural collector. Increasing farm to market usage on existing
Coffin Road has been observed; the new road has yet to be designed and any additional road right of way has not been acquired. No funds are allocated toward work on
this project yet.  

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Once the road is constructed the average annual operating and maintenance costs are estimated to be $1,500 per mile based. As has been stated before, early years
maintenance is very minimal increasing as the age of the road advances. A reduction in hauling farm to market costs will be realized by area constituents. Improving
the collector network should bring efficiencies to county maintenance efforts through reduced response road miles. 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

This collector will link Nine Canyon Road to Meals Road. The proposed project is 4.5 miles long to an all weather standard. This future road will provide a needed link in
the area two road network serving agriculture in the county. The collector will provide a necessary link bringing access to the Interstate. This road will be constructed to
an all weather road and it will  be a well used  farm to market route.

Purpose and Need

The southeast farming community in Benton County is served by narrow gravel roads. These roads follow the contour of the ground creating poor sight distance on
vertical, horizontal curves that do not meet minimum standards and in some cases steep grades. An all weather road built to todayʹs standards will provide a faster, safer
route for landowners to use in bringing their produce from the farm to the market.  

History and Current Status

Coffin Road
Nine Canyon Road to Meals Road (4.5 miles)

Description and Scope

56
Return to TOC



FEDERAL STPR INDIRECT GRANT FUNDS 300,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    150,000$            150,000$           
UNFUNDED SOURCE 4,300,000          ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     1,835,000          2,465,000$        
ROAD FUND  50,000               ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      50,000               ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 4,650,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    50,000$              1,985,000$         2,615,000$        

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 480,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    240,000$            240,000$           
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 4,020,000          ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     1,695,000          2,325,000         
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC) 150,000             ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      50,000               50,000               50,000              
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE  ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 4,650,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    50,000$              1,985,000$         2,615,000$        

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The County has completed a topographical survey; the road has not been designed and any additional road right of way has not been acquired. Staff has designated an
amount to begin work to prepare the project for construction. Future funding may involve some federal surface transportation funding. The goal is to get the project ready
for construction whereby applications for funding sources applied for an expedited completion. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact

Routine road maintenance is ongoing. The costs vary from year to year dependent upon the type of weather events that may have occurred during the year. Seasonal
damage has been observed to be increasing; however, year around truck usage has not. The average annual maintenance and operating costs are estimated to be $1,500
per mile based on 2011 dollars.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

SR 221 to Travis Road, 7.0 miles long; improve site distance by widening this narrow road from 26 feet to 34 feet; improve vertical and horizontal alignment to meet
current safety standards. This road will be reconstructed to an all weather road and is also a major farm to market route. The funding sources are anticipated to be
federal Surface Transportation Program Rural (STPR) funds and an unfunded resource.

Purpose and Need

Sellards Road is a farm to market road needing upgrade to current standards. This road is designated a T‐3 freight route by the WSDOT. We are experiencing some
increase in the frequency of damage on this road. This project will bring the designated freight route to a present day standard. The T‐3 designation elevates the
importance of the project for the future.  Safety will be improved by flatten fill slopes and upgrading the guardrails to todayʹs standards.

History and Current Status

Sellards Road ‐ CE 1915
SR 221 to Travis Road (7.0 miles)

Description and Scope

57
Return to TOC



FEDERAL STPR INDIRECT GRANT FUNDS 420,000$            ‐$                    420,000$            ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
UNFUNDED SOURCE 1,000,000          ‐                     1,000,000          ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
CRIMP 280,000             ‐                     280,000             ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
ROAD FUND 50,000               ‐                     50,000               ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 1,750,000$         ‐$                    1,750,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 50,000$              ‐$                    50,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 1,700,000          ‐                     1,700,000          ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE  ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 1,750,000$         ‐$                    1,750,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The project has been a priority for the County for the last two years. Right of way was acquired in 2006. The County has completed a topographical survey and the road
design with plans at 99% complete. Staff has applied for multiple funding sources recently including federal appropriations and stimulus one. The project was not
selected for these funding sources primarily because the rural project finds itself at a disadvantage when competing against urban roads. Most recently the county has
secured  some  surface transportation dollars  but need  a match  to  bring the project to completion. 

Operating and Maintenance Impact

As was stated this portion of Travis road is in exceptionally poor condition. Existing maintenance costs are also exceptionally high. In the past five years the annual
maintenance costs have averaged in excess of $55,000.00 on this road. The seasonal damage experienced on this road is unacceptable and rebuilding the road will resolve
the high maintenance cost.  This proposed improvement should result  in a  maintenance cost  saving of  $50,000  annually.  

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

Sellards Road to Hansen Road; 3.2 miles long; improve site distance, by widening this narrow road from 26 feet to 34 feet; improve vertical and horizontal alignment to
meet current safety standards. This road will be reconstructed to an all weather road and is also a major farm to market route. The funding sources are Federal Surface
Transportation Program Rural (STPR) funds, County Road Improvement Matching Program (CRIMP) funds, and Road funds. The project is unfunded by $1,000,000. The
Federal STPR funds must be expended by 12/31/2013 or the county will lose the grant.  

Purpose and Need

Travis Road is a narrow, hilly, farm to market road needing upgrade to current standards. This road is designated a T‐3 freight route by the WSDOT. In addition the road
is one of the few in the county that experiences severe seasonal damage. This project will bring the designated freight route to a necessary all weather standard. The
road has deteriorated to a point where we are patching patches.  This road is the last link in an all weather road system from Plymouth (SR‐14) to Benton City (I‐82).  

History and Current Status

Travis Road ‐ CE 1773
Sellards Road to Henson Road (3.2 miles)

Description and Scope

58
Return to TOC



TIB 1,470,000$         70,000$              1,400,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CRIMP 900,000             ‐                     900,000             ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
ROAD FUND 221,000             80,000               141,000             ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
FMSIB (possibility of unfunded)                                  459,000             ‐                     459,000             ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 3,050,000$         150,000$            2,900,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

ARCHITECT / ENGINEERING  FEES 120,000$            70,000$              50,000$              ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   
CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE COST 2,930,000          80,000               2,850,000          ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OTHER (FFE, LAND, CONTINGENCY, ETC) ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE  ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     ‐                     ‐                    

TOTAL 3,050,000$         150,000$            2,900,000$         ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

PROJECT BUDGET

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
COSTS

EXPENDITURES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016

The project was initiated in 1998. This project is the final phase of the project. The 2005 engineers report identified multiple alternatives. The road design alternate has
changed to mesh with railroad requirements and local business operations. Transportation Improvement Board have committed funding to the project. The freight
mobility strategic investment board has previously committed funds of which staff is hoping to get them reallocated with construction dates now being firm. The first
phase of construction is now scheduled to begin in the fall of 2011.

Operating and Maintenance Impact

New roads need very little repair maintenance for the first five years. However, county wide we have shown an average annual operating and maintenance expense to be
approximately $1,500 per mile. Staffs estimate of what costs might be to maintain and operate this segment of new road would be less than $3,000 per year including any
street lighting bills that the county will have to pay for the street lighted rail road crossing.    

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
PROJECT 
REVENUE

REVENUES

2011‐2012 2013‐2014 2015‐2016
PARTICIPATING FUNDS

The new roadway will serve as a rural collector to provide direct access for the Finley industrial area to SR –397 and Interstate 82 (I‐82 via SR‐397). This new road will
accommodate much of the industrial area. Between SR 397 and Bowles Road construct a new urban collector 1.8 miles long. The funding sources are State Transportation
Improvement Board (TIB) grant funds, Freight Mobility Strategic Investment Board (FMSIB) grant funds, County Road Improvement Matching Program (CRIMP) funds,
and County Road Funds.

Purpose and Need
The Needs, Issues and Analyses Report, prepared for the I‐82 to SR 397 Intertie Project, identified two of the needs as being a secondary arterial emergency route and a
truck route from I‐82 to the industrial area of Finley. In September 2008 Benton County completed the third phase of construction of the Intertie route connecting I‐82 to SR
397. In July 2009 this intertie route was accepted into the State Highway system and became a part of SR 397. The 1.75 mile extension of Piert Road will complete the
connection between the Finley Industrial area and SR 397. 

History and Current Status

Piert Road ‐ CE 1619
Between SR 397 and Bowles Road (1.8 miles)

Description and Scope

59
Return to TOC



. 

 

Glossary 

Benton 
      County 
 
620 Market Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Ph: (509) 786‐5600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B 
 

C 

GLOSSARY  includes  terms  that  will  help  you  understand  the  technical 
language  often  used  in  the  capital  improvement  plan. Glossary  terms  are
listed  alphabetically  under  each  alphabet  letter  and  include  a  brief
description and an acronym, as applicable. 

GGLLOOSSSSAARRYY 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary  

 
 

 
60 

Return to TOC 

 

B 
 

C 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN DOCUMENT GLOSSARY 

 
The  glossary  includes  terms  that will  help  you  understand  the  technical  language  often  used  in  the  capital  improvement  plan. 
Glossary terms are listed alphabetically under each alphabet letter and include a brief description and an acronym, as applicable.  
 

A 
ACQUISITION:  Acquiring  land,  existing  buildings,  or 
equipment  and vehicles. The Public Works Department uses 
the following definition: Right‐of‐Way/Acquisitions consist of 
right‐of‐way  cost  for  capital  projects,  including  appraisal, 
survey services, and research, as well as purchase transactions 
and any associated assistance.  
 
ADA  COMPLIANCE:  A  Federal  law  providing  for  a wide 
range  of  protection  to  individuals  with  disabilities  ranging 
from  prohibitions  against  discrimination  in  employment 
specific requirements for modifications of public facilities and 
transportation systems. 
 
ADOPTION: A  formal  action  taken  by  the Board  of Benton 
County Commissioners which sets the spending limits for the 
fiscal year.  
 
ARCHITECT/ENGINEERING FEES: Fees associated with the 
art/science  and  technology  concerned  with  designing  and 
building structures.   
 

B 
BALANCED  BUDGET:  Consists  of  each  funds’  estimated 
beginning  fund  balance  plus  revenues  to  equal  total  funds 
available, minus  total expenditures, which equals  the ending 
fund balance. These ending  fund balances must either equate 
to zero dollars or have a reserve balance remaining. 
 
BEGINNING  BALANCE:  Comprised  of  residual  funds 
brought forward from the previous year (ending balance). 
 
BOND: A debt security,  in which  the authorized  issuer owes 
the holders a debt and, depending on the terms of the bond, is 
obliged to pay interest (the coupon) to use and/or to repay the 
principal at a later date, termed maturity. 
 

C 
CAPITAL  FUND:  Routine  capital  outlay  purchases  and 
projects  by  the  county  including  but  not  limited  to  office 
furniture,  major  building  maintenance,  real  property 
acquisition,  building  remodeling  projects,  road  projects,  and 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary  

 
 

 
61 

Return to TOC 

 

B 
 

C 
water  projects.  Said  funds  shall  be  invested  by  the  Benton 
County  Treasurer  with  interest  accruing  to  the  Current 
Expense fund.   
 
CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENT  PROJECT: Non‐routine  capital 
expenditures that generally cost more than $5,000 resulting in 
the  purchase  of  equipment,  construction,  renovation  or 
acquisition  of  land,  infrastructure  and/or  buildings with  an 
expected useful life of at least five years.   
 
COLLECTOR  (Urban):  The  collector  street  system  provides 
both  land  access  service  and  traffic  circulation  within 
residential and neighborhoods and commercial and industrial 
areas.  It differs from the arterial system in that facilities on the 
collector  system  may  penetrate  residential  neighborhoods, 
distributing  trips  from  the arterials  through  the area  to  their 
ultimate  destinations.    Conversely,  the  collector  street  also 
collects  traffic  from  local streets  in  residential neighborhoods 
and channels I into the arterial system.  In the central business 
district, and  in other areas of similar development and  traffic 
density, the collector system may include the entire street grid.  
The collector street system may also carry local bus routes. 
 
CORRIDOR: A major  transportation route which can consist 
of one or more highways, arterial streets, transit lines, rail lines 
and/or bikeways. 
 

D 
DEBT CAPACITY: Ability  to  borrow money.  The  County’s 
legal  non‐voted  debt  capacity  is  1.5%  of  the  assessed 
valuation, less outstanding limited tax general obligation bond 
debt,  plus  available  assets.  The  County’s  legal  voted  debt 
capacity  is  2.5%  of  the  assessed  valuation,  less  outstanding 
limited tax general obligation bond debt, plus available assets. 
 
DEMOLITION: The destruction and removal of some or all of 
an existing structure. 
 
DEPRECIATION:  The  periodic  cost  assigned  for  the 
reduction  in  usefulness  and  value  of  a  long‐term  tangible 
asset.  
  

E 
EASEMENT:  A  right  to  use  the  real  property  of  another 
without possessing it.  
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:    Investment  of  resources  to 
create  financial  self‐sufficiency  and  prosperity  in  a 
community,  including the  industrial, commercial, and service 
sectors.  
 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary  

 
 

 
62 

Return to TOC 

 

B 
 

C 

F 
FAIRGROUNDS  IMPROVEMENT  FUND:  A  fund 
established  for  the  purpose  of  capital  improvements  to  the 
Benton County  Fairgrounds,  but  not  limited  to maintenance 
and upkeep of the fairgrounds 
 
FURNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT (FF&E): Moveable 
furniture, fixtures or other equipment that have no permanent 
connection to the structure of a building or utilities. 
 
FMSIB:  Freight  Mobility  Strategic  Investment  Board ɪ
("ompetitive State indirect grant funds). 
 

G 
GOAL:  A  general  and  timeless  statement  created  with  a 
purpose based on the needs of the community.  
 

H 
HEATING,  VENTILATION,  AND  AIR  CONDITIONING 
(HVAC):  Refers  to  technology  of  indoor  environmental 
comfort.  
 

I 
INFRASTRUCTURE:  Facilities  that  support  the  continuance 
and growth of a community.   Examples  include roads, water 
lines, sewers, public buildings, & parks.  
 

J 
JAIL  DEPRECIATION  FUND:  In  1998,  Benton  County 
established  a  Jail  Depreciation  Fund  for  the  purpose  of 
holding  monies  collected  from  the  cities  and  county  for 
depreciation  factors  on  the  Benton  County  Jail. By 
establishing and funding the Jail Depreciation Fund thru the 
prisoner  bed  day  rate,  Benton  County  hopes  to  limit  the 
financial  impact  to  the General Fund  should a  catastrophic 
failure occur  in  the  jail.  Jail Depreciation  funds shall also be 
used  to  replace  equipment  vital  to  jail  operations,  which 
usually are expensive in nature. 
 

K 
There are no items at this time. 
 
 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary  

 
 

 
63 

Return to TOC 

 

B 
 

C 

L 
LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS: A method of describing a particular 
parcel  of  land  in  such  a way  that  it  uniquely  describes  the 
particular parcel and no other.  
 

M 
MAJOR  COLLECTOR  (Rural):    These  routes  have  several 
definitions. 1) serve county seats not on arterials routes, larger 
towns  not  directly  served  by  the  higher  systems,  and  other 
traffic generator of equivalent intracounty importance, such as 
consolidated  schools,  shipping  points,  county  parks,  and 
important agricultural areas; 2)  link  these places with nearby 
larger  towns or cities, or with routes of higher classifications; 
and 3) serve the more important intracounty travel corridors. 
 
MASTER PLAN: A plan prepared  to  specify and  coordinate 
the  provision  of  one  or  more  infrastructure  systems  and 
related services. 
 
MILESTONE: A tangible point in time that tells how far along 
a project is in the process.  
 
MINOR  COLLECTOR  (Rural):  These  routes  should  1)  be 
spaced at intervals consistent with population density to  

 
accumulate  traffic  from  local  roads  and  bring  all  developed 
areas within reasonable distances of collector roads; 2) provide 
service to the remaining smaller communities; and 3)  link the 
local important traffic generators with their rural vicinity. 
 

N 
There are no items at this time. 
 

O 
OTHER  EXPENDITURES:  Expenditures  not  related  to  CIP 
projects  for  a  specific  fund.  Examples  include  operating 
transfers, minimum fund balances, and etc. 
 

P 
PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND:  is a cumulative reserve fund 
for  the purpose of accumulating and expending said moneys 
for capital improvements within Benton County parks.  
 

Q 
There are no items at this time. 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary  

 
 

 
64 

Return to TOC 

 

B 
 

C 

R 
R.E.E.T. FUND: 1/4 PERCENT REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX is 
a  fund  to account  for  the revenues generated by a special 1/4 
of  1  percent  excise  tax  levied  on  the  sale  of  real  property 
within  the  County.    All  projects  must  be  included  in  the 
annual Benton County Comprehensive Land Use Plan before 
any spending is approved.  
 
R.E.E.T  TECHNOLOGY  FUND:  is  a  fund  established  per 
State  of  Washington  Legislature  SSHB  1240,  section  2  to 
increase  excise  fees on Real Estate Excise Tax  to provide  for 
the development and implementation of an automated system 
for  the  electronic  processing  of  the  real  estate  excise  tax 
compatible  with  the  system  developed  by  the  Washington 
State Department of Revenue.  
 
REVENUE:  Total  amounts  available  for  appropriation 
including  estimated  revenues,  fund  transfers  and  beginning 
fund  balances.  Financial  resources  are  received  from  taxes, 
user charges and other levels of government.  
 
RIGHT‐OF‐WAY:  The  right  given  by  one  landowner  to 
another to pass over the land actually transferring ownership. 
ROW  is  granted  by  deed  or  easement,  for  construction  and 
maintenance according to a designated use. 

S 
STPR: Surface Transportation Program Rural (Competitive 
Federal indirect grant fund)  
 
SUSTAINABLE  DEVELOPMENT:  Development  with  the 
goal  of  preserving  environmental  quality,  natural  resources 
and livability for present and future generations. 
 

T 
TIB:  Transportation  Improvement  Board  (Competitive  State 
indirect grant funds) 
 

U 
UNFUNDED SOURCE: Projects that are requested, however, 
there is no available funding for these projects.    
 
 

V 
There are no items at this time. 
 



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011‐2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Glossary  

 
 

 
65 

Return to TOC 

 

B 
 

C 

W 
There are no items at this time. 
 

X 
There are no items at this time. 
 

Y 
There are no items at this time. 
 

Z 
There are no items at this time. 


	Web Packet 092011.pdf
	Agenda Minutes 091311
	CA - Centra Services a
	CA - Central Services b
	CA - Clerk c
	agenda action sheet-folders
	RESOLUTION for folders
	Case file folder quotes
	State Copier Contract

	CA - Commissioners d
	CA - Fairgrounds e
	CA - Human Services f
	CA - Human Services g
	CA - Human Services h
	CA - Human Services i
	CA - Human Services j
	CA - Juvenile k
	CA - Juvenile l
	CA - OPD m
	CA - OPD n
	CA - OPD o
	CA - OPD p
	CA - Parks q
	CA - Planning r
	SPV 11-02 9 13 11.pdf
	Agenda Sheet
	Resolution
	Site Map
	Map showing old & New easement locations


	CA - Public Works s
	CA - Public Works t
	CA - Public Works u
	CA - Sheriff v
	CA - Sheriff w
	CA - Sheriff x
	Timed - Boundary Review Board 11-05
	Timed - CIP
	0 - CIP Front Cover
	1 - CIP Navigation Tips
	2 - CIP Table of Contents
	3 - CIP Resolution
	4 - Board of Benton County Commissioners
	5 - CIP County Department Introduction
	5a - CIP - Introduction Tab
	6 - CIP Introduction
	7- CIP Operating Impact rev
	8 - CIP Summary rev

	a - CIP Capital Improvement Fund Summary
	aa - CIP Capital Improvement Capital Fund
	b - CIP Capital Improvement Capital Fund

	bb - CIP Capital Improvement ER&R Tab
	c - CIP Capital Improvement ER&R

	cc - CIP Capital Improvement Fairgrounds Tab
	d - CIP Capital Improvement Fairgrounds Improvement Fund

	dd - CIP Capital Improvement Jail Tab
	e - CIP Capital Improvement Jail Depreciation

	ee - CIP Capital Improvement Park Tab
	f - CIP Capital Improvement Park Development

	ff - CIP Capital Improvement REET Tab
	g - CIP Capital Improvement REET Fund

	gg - CIP Capital Improvement REET Technology Tab
	h - CIP Capital Improvement REET Technology

	hh - CIP Capital Improvement Unfunded Tab
	i - CIP Capital Improvement Unfunded

	ii - CIP Glossary Tab
	j - CIP Glossary rev





